
Dear Shareholders,

Since inception, we have been committed to providing individual investors access to institutional quality 
Private Equity investments. Our sponsor has been Democratizing Access to Private Equitysm for nearly fifteen 
years and Triton Pacific Investment Corporation (TPIC) has achieved a new milestone by broadening its reach 
more than any of its prior offerings as a a publicly register non-traded fund focused on Private Equity.

The year 2015 was a foundational one for TPIC.  We evaluated hundreds of private equity investments, closing 
on two private companies we are very excited about. Our dealer manager has made significant additions to 
their distribution team; headed by industry veteran Brian D. Buehler and has added many well-known firms to 
the selling group.  We expect these enhancements to increase the amount of capital available to deploy into 
TPIC’s portfolio transactions.

Through our investment in Javlin Capital, TPIC shareholders are able to 
participate in the large and growing specialty finance sector.  With commercial 

banks having been effectively regulated out of many profitable areas of lending and investing, and a general 
retrenchment by many non-bank financing providers following the ‘Great Recession’, we believe that companies 
like Javlin are able to fill the void with unique business models resulting in large and growing businesses. Javlin 
is an operationally focused specialty finance company that is currently active within four primary markets – 

consumer, real estate, litigation finance and healthcare finance. Javlin 
structures its investments as fully secured participating loans and as 
a direct purchaser of accounts receivable within healthcare such as 
workers’ compensation receivables from medical providers. Their 
investment approach results in diversification by asset type and payor.  
The overall strategy combines various disciplines in a systematic, 
scalable business model. The key elements of the Javlin underwriting 
and servicing model are (i) extensive diligence on the borrower/
originator; (ii) comprehensive independent underwriting of each 
individual investment; and (iii) use of structured finance to deliver the 
opportunity for superior risk-adjusted returns. 

Through fiscal year 2015, Javlin has enjoyed a four-year annual growth 
rate in its portfolio of more than 60%.  Javlin’s ongoing focus is aimed towards realizing greater operating 
efficiencies, achieving scale within the litigation finance business, lowering its cost of capital, and increasing 
balance sheet flexibility to take advantage of opportunities that may present themselves from potential softness 
in the economy.

We also closed on a private equity investment in Injured Workers Pharmacy (“IWP”), an 
exciting company participating in the growing healthcare industry. Healthcare is one of the 
largest sectors in our economy and the changes that have taken place over the past few years 

from a legislative and regulatory perspective have created a fertile environment for attractive investment 
opportunities for those with expertise in this sector. Our sponsor has a dedicated healthcare investment team 
that evaluated dozens of healthcare investment opportunities this year.
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Sincerely, 

Craig J. Faggen | Chairman & CeO 

Our investment in IWP marks the first healthcare private 
equity investment by TPIC. IWP is one of the largest workers’ 
compensation focused institutional pharmacies in the 
country, having delivered  more than 600,000 prescriptions 
to patients in all 50 states in 2015.  IWP has deep domain 
expertise in the complex billing and collection process for 
workers’ compensation claims.  These are highly specialized 
and complicated claims being paid primarily by indemnity 
insurers as opposed to traditional healthcare plans or 
Medicare.  The workers’ compensation market is unique as 
each state maintains its own complex rules, including drug 
pricing, reimbursement processing and pharmacy selection which creates barriers to entry for competitors.  
IWP’s expertise allows them to provide patients with next day, and in some cases same day, delivery of their 
medication, avoiding the long delays for payment authorization that patients often experience with traditional 
pharmacies. IWP had very strong financial performance in 2015 with revenues increasing by more than 15% 
and proforma eBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) by nearly 18% when 
compared to the prior year.  Expectations are for continued double digit growth while focusing on key 
initiatives such as tracking patient outcomes and increased physician education.

Our strategy to manage cash drag for TPIC was successfully executed this year with assistance from our  
sub-adviser, Zais Group, llC.  We ended the year with 23 debt positions across 11 different industry sectors 
with a weighted average yield of 7.2%.  By deploying a portion of our uninvested capital into syndicated bank 
loans, we are able to keep this capital working for investors as we identify new private equity investments. 

last year, our sponsor reviewed hundreds of deals and we expect this robust deal volume to continue. We 
continue to have access to strong deal flow and remain excited about the prospects for building our private 
equity portfolio in 2016. 

We thank you for your confidence and we look forward to successful 2016.

STATE PRESENCE SALES REPRESENTATIVE PRESENT

IWP SALES DISTRIBUTION
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by Standard & Poor’s Corporation – also known as “junk bonds”). However, we may also invest in non-rated debt 
securities. 

We intend to primarily make debt investments likely to generate current income and equity investments in 
small to mid-sized private U.S. companies either alone or together with other private equity sponsors. Our 
investment objective is to generate current income and long term capital appreciation.  

 

 Triton Pacific Adviser is responsible for sourcing potential investments, conducting due diligence on 
prospective investments, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring investments and monitoring our portfolio 
on an ongoing basis. In addition, we intend to elect and qualify to be treated, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, 
as a regulated investment company (“RIC”), under subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the “Code”).  

 
We are currently offering for sale a maximum of $300,000,000 of our shares of common stock on a "best 

efforts" basis pursuant to a registration statement on Form N-2 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Offering").  Our initial offering commenced on September 4, 
2012 and expired on March 1, 2016 and in that initial offering, we sold a total of 672,670.79 shares of our common 
stock for the gross proceeds of $9,893,780.  On March 17, 2016, we commenced the follow-on offering of our 
common stock when our registration statement was declared effective by the SEC.     

 
Effective March 2, 2016, our shares of common stock were divided into two classes, Class A and Class T.  

In our offering, we are initially offering only Class A shares and intend to offer Class T shares in the future, subject 
to obtaining a satisfactory exemption relief order from the SEC, with each class having its own different upfront 
sales load and fee and expense structure. We may offer additional classes of shares in the future. We intend to apply 
for exemptive relief from the SEC with respect to this multiple share class structure, including our distribution fee 
and contingent deferred sales charge arrangements. As a condition of such relief, we will be required to comply with 
provisions that would not otherwise be applicable to us. The exemptive relief order from the SEC may require us to 
supplement or amend the terms set forth in this prospectus, including the terms of the Class A shares currently being 
offered. 

 
Our investment objective is to maximize our portfolio's total return by generating current income from our 

debt investments and long term capital appreciation from our equity investments. We will seek to meet our 
investment objectives by: 

-Focusing primarily on debt and equity investments in small and mid-sized private U.S. companies, which 
we define as companies with annual revenue of from $10 million to $ 250 million at the time of investment; 
 
-Leveraging the experience and expertise of our Adviser, its Sub-Adviser and its affiliates in sourcing, 
evaluating and structuring transactions; 
 
-Employing disciplined underwriting policies and rigorous portfolio management; 
 
-Developing our equity portfolio through our Adviser’s Value Enhancement Program, more fully discussed 
below in “Investment Objectives and Policies – Investment Process”; and 

 
-Maintaining a well balanced portfolio. 
 
We intend to be active in both debt and equity investing. We will seek to provide current income to our 

investors through our debt investments while seeking to enhance our investors’ overall returns through long term 
capital appreciation of our equity investments. We intend to be opportunistic in our investment approach, allocating 
our investments between debt and equity, depending on: 

-Investment opportunities 
 
-Market conditions 
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the Company Act, in no event will our leverage exceed 50% of the value of our assets.  While we have not yet 
determined the amount of leverage we will use, we do not currently anticipate that we would approach the 50% 
maximum level frequently or at all. The use of leverage, although it may increase returns, may also increase the risk 
of loss to our investors, particularly if the level of our leverage is high and the value of our investments declines.   

 
Status of Our Continuous Public Offering 

Since commencing our continuous public offering and through March 30, 2016, we have sold 672,670.79 
shares of our common stock for gross proceeds of approximately $9,893,475, including $200,003 of seed capital 
contributed by our Advisor.  

About our Adviser 

Our Adviser is registered as an investment adviser under the Adviser Act.  Our Adviser and Triton Pacific 
Group, Inc. are under the common control of Craig Faggen, who is also our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. 
Triton Pacific Group, Inc. is an investment management firm that focuses primarily on private equity investments 
through its subsidiary, Triton Pacific Capital Partners and affiliated investment funds. Since 2001, TPCP has 
focused on debt and equity investments in small to mid-sized private companies generally with revenues of less than 
$250 million. Since its inception, affiliates of TPCP have invested in the aggregate more than $140 million in 
private companies with an estimated aggregate enterprise value at the time of investment of more than $500 million.   

Craig J. Faggen, Ivan Faggen, Joseph Davis, Thomas Scott, Sean D. Gjos and Jeffrey Yang will initially 
make up the investment committee of our Adviser. Each of them has extensive investment, operational and advisory 
experience, primarily working with small to mid-sized companies. Members of this team have been working 
together sourcing, structuring, investing and managing investments in small to middle market companies for over 
ten years. 

Our board of directors includes a majority of independent directors and will oversee and monitor the 
activities of our Adviser and our Sub-Adviser, as well as our investment portfolio and performance and will 
annually review the compensation paid to our Adviser and Sub-Adviser. See “Investment Adviser Agreement”, 
below. In addition to managing our portfolio, our Adviser will provide on our behalf managerial assistance to those 
of our portfolio companies to which we are required to provide such assistance.  We have the right to terminate the 
investment adviser agreement upon 60 days’ written notice to the Adviser and our Adviser has the right to terminate 
the investment adviser agreement upon 120 days’ written notice to us.  Both our Adviser and Sub-Adviser have the 
right to terminate the sub-advisory agreement without penalty upon 60 days’ written notice to the other party. 

About our Sub-adviser 

Our Adviser has engaged ZAIS Group, LLC to act as our investment sub-adviser. ZAIS assists our Adviser 
with identifying, evaluating, negotiating and structuring debt investments and makes investment recommendations 
for approval by our Adviser.  ZAIS is a registered investment adviser under the Advisers Act and had approximately 
$4.157 billion in assets under management as of December 31, 2015.  ZAIS is not an affiliate of us or our Adviser 
and does not own any of our shares.  The appointment of ZAIS as our sub-adviser was approved by our stockholders 
at a special meeting held on September 16, 2014.  Vincent Ingato will be initially responsible for the day-to-day 
management of the debt investments managed by our Sub-Adviser.  Mr. Ingato has more than 20 years of 
investment experience, primarily investing in debt and other credit oriented securities.   

Our Market Opportunity 

Our target market for private equity investments is typically referred to as the lower middle market, which 
we define as U.S. companies with revenues from $10 million to $250 million and earnings before income, taxes, 
depreciation, and amortization, or EBITDA, between $1 million and $25 million.  This lower middle market 
represents a large majority of the private businesses in the United States, accounting for 30.7% of the US work force 
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We may also invest in certain industries that are dependent to some degree on technological development and 
innovation, such as information technology and computer software. 

Extensive Underwriting and Portfolio Management. Our Adviser will employ an extensive underwriting and due 
diligence process for equity investments which will include an initial review of all prospective portfolio companies, 
their competitive position, financial performance and the dynamics of the industry in which they compete. We will 
seek to invest with management teams or other private equity sponsors who have a demonstrated track record 
building value. Through our Adviser, we will offer managerial assistance to our portfolio companies, giving them 
access to our Adviser’s investment experience, direct industry expertise and contacts, and allowing us to continually 
monitor their progress. As part of the monitoring process, our Adviser will analyze monthly and quarterly financial 
statements versus the previous periods and year, review financial projections, meet with management, attend board 
meetings, review all compliance certificates and covenants and maintain our awareness of critical industry 
developments and trends 

Untapped Opportunities. For equity investments, we will seek to identify companies with strong management and 
untapped potential that would benefit from a combination of new capital and strategic relationships and our 
operating expertise and guidance. While the founders of such companies have built successful enterprises, they often 
need additional capital and management resources and a more sophisticated perspective to take the company to the 
next level. We believe that these companies, led by appropriately motivated management teams, can be vehicles for 
creating substantial value through accelerated growth and operational improvements.  

Value-Added Management. For equity investments, we will seek to negotiate terms that will provide us with 
significant influence or control of a portfolio company. When making an investment, we will attempt to leverage our 
Adviser’s operational and financial expertise to strengthen portfolio company management teams and assist them in 
achieving their full potential.  To do so, we will employ our Adviser’s Value Enhancement Program, to change the 
corporate infrastructure of portfolio companies with a view to accelerating and enhancing their “exit readiness”. 
This strategy has often resulted in a short-term reduction in portfolio company earnings and cash flow while the 
company’s sales catch up with the more robust infrastructure required for rapid growth that we help put in place.  
The intended result, however, is a larger, more professional organization, which can either be used as a platform for 
future expansion or be built into a potential add-on to a larger player in its market; in either instance an attractive 
target for a larger private equity fund or a strategic corporate buyer. 

Debt Investment. We will seek to invest in senior secured loans, second lien secured loans, and, to a lesser extent, 
subordinated loans and corporate bonds of established companies.  Senior secured loans are situated at the top of the 
capital structure. Because these loans have priority in payment, they carry the least risk among all investments in a 
firm. Generally, our senior secured loans are expected to have maturities of three to seven years, offer some form of 
amortization, and have first priority security interests in the assets of the borrower.  Second lien secured loans are 
immediately junior to senior secured loans and have substantially the same maturities, collateral and covenant 
structures as senior secured loans. Second lien secured loans, however, are granted a second priority security interest 
in the assets of the borrower. In return for this junior ranking, second lien secured loans generally offer higher 
returns compared to senior secured debt. Subordinated debt investments usually rank junior in priority of payment to 
senior secured loans and second lien secured loans and are often unsecured, but are situated above preferred equity 
and common stock in the capital structure. In return for their junior status compared to first lien and second lien 
secured loans, subordinated debt investments typically offer higher returns through both higher interest rates and 
possible equity ownership in the form of warrants. 

Well Established Firm and Experienced Investment Committee. Our Adviser’s management team is primarily from 
TPCP, which was founded in 2001 to provide access to capital and management/operational expertise to the 
underserved lower middle market. TPCP has since expanded to include multiple affiliates and the management of 
numerous investment funds that specialize in providing specialty investment opportunities in the lower middle 
market for institutional and individual investors and a broad array of capital resources to mature lower middle 
market companies. Triton Pacific Capital Partners, LLC has to date invested in 18 companies with an estimated 
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acquired from banks, other specialty finance companies, private equity sponsors, loan syndications and other 
investors. 

Our Adviser has engaged ZAIS Group, LLC. ZAIS assists our Adviser with identifying, evaluating, 
negotiating and structuring debt investments and makes investment recommendations for approval by our Adviser.  
We anticipate our debt investments will primarily consist of investments in senior secured loans, second lien secured 
loans and, to a lesser extent, subordinated loans and corporate bonds of private U.S. companies. We may purchase 
interests in loans through secondary market transactions in the “over-the-counter” market for institutional loans or 
directly from our target companies as primary market investments. In connection with our debt investments, we may 
on occasion receive equity interests such as warrants or options as additional consideration. The majority of our debt 
investments are expected to be made in small and middle-market companies, which we define as companies with 
annual revenue of $10 million to $2.5 billion at the time of investment. In many environments, we believe such a 
focus offers an opportunity for superior risk adjusted returns.  

The structure of our investments is likely to vary and we expect to invest throughout a portfolio company’s 
capital structure, including, but not limited to, senior secured and unsecured debt, mezzanine debt, preferred equity, 
common equity, warrants and other instruments, many of which generate current yield. In addition, in order to 
diversify our investment portfolio and to the extent allowed by the Company Act and consistent with our continued 
qualification as a RIC, we may also invest in loans to larger companies which should be more liquid than the debt 
securities of smaller companies. 

So that we continue to qualify as a BDC, we intend to make investments so that at least 70% of our assets 
are “qualifying assets” for purposes of the Company Act. We may invest the balance of our portfolio in 
opportunistic “non-qualifying assets” investments in order to seek enhanced returns for our stockholders. Such 
investments may include investments in the debt and equity instruments of broadly traded public companies. We 
expect that these investments generally will be in debt securities that are non-investment grade. Within this 30% 
basket, we may also invest in debt and equity securities of companies located outside of the United States.  All such 
investments are intended to be made in compliance with the Company Act and in a manner that will not jeopardize 
our status as a RIC.  

Investment Philosophy 

We will focus on the following key elements when evaluating an equity investment opportunity: 

Attractive Industries:  We will identify industries that we believe exhibit strong growth characteristics or 
consolidation attributes, are experiencing rapid rates of change or are beginning to transform their business models. 

Strong Management: Management is critically important in any company.  However, making significant changes in 
strategy or operations or driving towards rapid expansion places additional demands on leadership. Therefore, we 
are only interested in investing in companies that we believe have strong management teams in place, based on their 
expertise and prior performance, or where there is a clear and achievable strategy of attracting the right people to the 
team. In all cases, we firmly believe it is essential for management to be committed to agreed-upon strategic 
objectives for the company prior to making an investment. 

Positive Cash Flow:  We will identify companies with a sufficient history or what we believe will be a prospect of 
positive cash flow to allow for distributions, while retaining sufficient cash to grow the company.  

Operating Inefficiencies/Modernization:  Many small businesses have not taken advantage of the tools that have 
become available to their industry to drive operational efficiencies and support more rapid growth.  We will look to 
invest in companies that have potential because they have not yet benefited from new production techniques, new 
technologies, or other promising industry trends that have benefited their larger competitors.   

Ability to Add Value:  Our Adviser’s experienced executives can be valuable to any management team, particularly 
those attempting to grow their company aggressively.  We will evaluate each prospective investment to understand 
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process, our Adviser will analyze monthly and quarterly financial statements versus the previous periods and year, 
review financial projections, meet with management, attend board meetings, review all compliance certificates and 
covenants and maintain our awareness of critical industry developments and trends.  

In addition, members of our Adviser have built relationships with executives in industries we believe to be 
attractive. These executives may become a source for proprietary opportunities and may be available as industry 
partners to help evaluate, invest and subsequently grow the companies.  

Stage II - Due Diligence:  A thorough understanding and evaluation of the strategic opportunity offered by a 
potential investment and the risks and opportunities unique to a company and its marketplace is crucial to properly 
evaluate any portfolio company.  This can only be achieved through an extensive due diligence process and 
comprehensive financial and operational analysis of the business.  We believe that the due diligence process is not 
just a financial review, but rather a comprehensive industry, operational, management, marketing, technical and 
legal assessment. In conducting its due diligence, our Adviser may capitalize on industry partners’ expertise and 
relationships when relevant.   

During the initial screening, our Adviser will evaluate the company, assesses its management and look to identify 
the primary risks and opportunities.  During the due diligence process, our Adviser will employ an extensive 
checklist of potential areas that could pose problems for a portfolio company business as well as questions specific 
to the business and industry that have been derived from industry standards and modified by experience and the 
initial screening process.  As part of this process, they will conduct an operational due diligence review.  This may 
include site visits to gain an accurate impression of the business and management’s capabilities.   

The decision to invest is reached by consensus among the members of the investment committee of our Adviser.  
Our Adviser believes that its focus on effective internal communication and its team-based compensation structure 
has created an environment for a collaborative, open and complete process, and ultimately leads to better investment 
decisions. 

Stage III – Structuring Transactions:  We believe that the members of the investment committee of our Adviser 
have developed complex structuring expertise and mergers and acquisitions experience which we will be able to 
leverage when making a portfolio company investment. The intent is to structure transactions in a manner that is fair 
to the existing shareholders and yet minimizes the downside risk to us.  Because of the inefficiencies in the lower 
middle market, we believe we will be able to obtain structures that offer significant risk mitigation for investors.  

Stage IV - Building Companies:  Our overall objective is to generate returns from our investment portfolio that 
provide attractive risk-reward characteristics for our investors. To meet this objective, we will focus a portion of our 
Adviser’s efforts on building our investments into larger, more efficient, and more valuable businesses. We are not 
in the business of running companies, but our Adviser has an investment committee with extensive portfolio 
management experience that is dedicated to, and experienced in working with companies to build and enhance their 
operations.  For equity and equity-like investments, our Adviser utilizes a unique Value Enhancement Program to 
help companies achieve this goal.  See “Investment Objectives and Policies – Investment Principles.” 

In evaluating debt opportunities, our Adviser and our Sub-Adviser will examine information provided by 
the target company and external sources such as rating agencies (if applicable) to determine if the opportunity meets 
our investment criteria and guidelines. For most loans that are purchased on the secondary market, a comprehensive 
credit analysis is conducted and maintained by a research analyst to allow the investment team to make informed 
buy/ sell decisions and assessment of credit quality. Much of this information will be derived from financial reports 
detailing the financial performance along with key metrics on a quarterly basis.  
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We may invest 100% of our assets in securities or obligations acquired directly from issuers in privately-
negotiated transactions.  With respect such securities, we may, for the purpose of public resale, be deemed an 
“underwriter” for purposes of the Securities Act.  We may acquire warrants to purchase common stock of our 
portfolio companies in connection with acquisition financings or other investments and we may acquire rights to 
require our portfolio companies to repurchase the securities we acquire from them in certain circumstances.  We do 
not intend to acquire securities issued by any investment company that exceeds the limits imposed by the Company 
Act.  Under these limits, except for registered money market funds, we generally cannot acquire more than 3% of 
the voting stock of any investment company, invest more than 5% of the value of our total assets in the securities or 
obligations of one investment company or invest more than 10% of our total assets in the securities or obligations of 
more than one investment company.  None of our investment policies are fundamental and may be changed without 
stockholder approval. 

To the extent permitted by the Company Act and SEC staff interpretations, our Adviser may determine it is 
appropriate for us and one or more other investment accounts managed by our Adviser or any of their respective 
affiliates to participate in the same investment opportunity. We have applied for exemptive relief from the SEC to 
engage in co-investment opportunities with our Adviser or its affiliates. There can be no assurance, however, that an 
order providing exemptive relief will be granted. While we have not yet determined whether or not we will, in fact, 
participate in investments with other affiliates of our Adviser, such co-investment opportunities might give rise to 
actual or perceived conflicts of interest among us and other participating accounts.  To mitigate these conflicts we 
and the Adviser have developed policies and procedures which require the Adviser to (i) execute such transactions 
for all of the participating investment accounts, including us, on a fair and equitable basis, taking into account such 
factors as the appropriateness of an investment for each party concerned, the relative amounts of capital available 
from each such party for new investments, the then current investment programs and objectives and portfolio 
positions of each party and any other factors deemed appropriate, and (ii) obtain the advice of Adviser personnel not 
directly involved with the investment giving rise to the conflict as to such appropriateness and other factors as well 
as the fairness to all parties of the investment and its terms.   

Qualifying Assets 

Under the Company Act, a business development company may not acquire any asset other than assets of 
the type listed in Section 55(a) of the Company Act, which are referred to as “qualifying assets”, unless, at the time 
the acquisition is made, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the company’s total assets. The principal 
categories of qualifying assets relevant to our business are the following: 

1. Securities purchased in transactions not involving any public offering from the issuer of such securities, which 
issuer (subject to certain limited exceptions) is an eligible portfolio company, or from any person who is, or has 
been during the preceding 13 months, an affiliated person of an eligible portfolio company, or from any other 
person, subject to such rules as may be prescribed by the SEC. An eligible portfolio company is defined in the 
Company Act as any issuer which: 

a. is organized under the laws of, and has its principal place of business in, the United States; 

b.  is not an investment company (other than a small business investment company wholly owned by 
the business development company) or a company that would be an investment company but for 
certain exclusions under the Company Act; and 

c. satisfies any of the following: 
 

i. does not have any class of securities that is traded on a national securities exchange; 
ii. has a class of securities listed on a national securities exchange, but has an aggregate 

market value of outstanding voting and non-voting common equity of less than $250 
million; 

iii. is controlled by a business development company or a group of companies including a 
business development company and the business development company has an affiliated 
person who is a director of the eligible portfolio company; or 

iv. is a small and solvent company having total assets of not more than $4.0 million and 
capital and surplus of not less than $2.0 million. 
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Managerial Assistance 

In order to count portfolio securities as qualifying assets for the purpose of the 70% test, we must either 
control the issuer of the securities or must offer to make available to the issuer of the securities (other than small and 
solvent companies described above) significant managerial assistance; except that, where we purchase such 
securities in conjunction with one or more other persons acting together, one of the other persons in the group may 
make available such managerial assistance. Making available managerial assistance means, among other things, any 
arrangement whereby the business development company, through its directors, officers or employees, offers to 
provide, and, if accepted, does so provide, significant guidance and counsel concerning the management, operations 
or business objectives and policies of a company. 
 
Temporary Investments 
 

Pending investment in other types of “qualifying assets,” as described above, our investments may consist 
of cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government securities or high-quality debt securities maturing in one year or less 
from the time of investment, which we refer to, collectively, as temporary investments, so that 70% of our assets are 
qualifying assets. Typically, we will invest in U.S. Treasury bills or in repurchase agreements, provided that such 
agreements are fully collateralized by cash or securities issued by the U.S. government or its agencies. A repurchase 
agreement involves the purchase by an investor, such as us, of a specified security and the simultaneous agreement 
by the seller to repurchase it at an agreed-upon future date and at a price that is greater than the purchase price by an 
amount that reflects an agreed-upon interest rate. There is no percentage restriction on the proportion of our assets 
that may be invested in such repurchase agreements. However, if more than 25% of our total assets constitute 
repurchase agreements from a single counterparty, we would not meet the Diversification Tests in order to qualify as 
a RIC for federal income tax purposes. Thus, we do not intend to enter into repurchase agreements with a single 
counterparty in excess of this limit. Our Adviser will monitor the creditworthiness of the counterparties with which 
we enter into repurchase agreement transactions. 
 
Senior Securities 
 

We are permitted, under specified conditions, to issue multiple classes of debt and one class of stock senior 
to our common stock if our asset coverage, as defined in the Company Act, is at least equal to 200% immediately 
after each such issuance. In addition, while any senior securities remain outstanding, we must make provisions to 
prohibit any distribution to our stockholders or the repurchase of such securities or shares unless we meet the 
applicable asset coverage ratios at the time of the distribution or repurchase. We may also borrow amounts up to 5% 
of the value of our total assets for temporary or emergency purposes without regard to asset coverage. For a 
discussion of the risks associated with leverage, see “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Business Development 
Companies”. Regulations governing our operation as a business development company and RIC will affect our 
ability to raise, and the way in which we raise additional capital or borrow for investment purposes, which may have 
a negative effect on our growth.” 
 
Code of Ethics 
 

We have adopted a code of ethics in accordance with Rule 17j-1 under the Company Act that establishes 
procedures for personal investments and restricts certain personal securities transactions. Personnel subject to the 
code may invest in securities for their personal investment accounts, including securities that may be purchased or 
held by us, so long as such investments are made in accordance with the code’s requirements. We have attached our 
code of ethics as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. You may also read and 
copy the code of ethics at the SEC’s Public Reference Room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. 
You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. 
In addition, the code of ethics is available on the EDGAR Database on the SEC’s Internet site at www.sec.gov. 
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 pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer are 
required to certify the accuracy of the financial statements contained in our periodic reports; 

 pursuant to Item 307 of Regulation S-K, our periodic reports are required to disclose our conclusions about 
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures;  

 pursuant to Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act, our management are required to prepare a report regarding 
its assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. This report must be audited by our 
independent registered public accounting firm; and 

 pursuant to Item 308 of Regulation S-K and Rule 12a-15 under the Exchange Act, our periodic reports 
must disclose whether there were significant changes in our internal controls over financial reporting or in 
other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, 
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires us to review our current policies and procedures to determine whether we 

comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the regulations promulgated thereunder. We intend to monitor our 
compliance with all regulations that are adopted under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and will take actions necessary to 
ensure that we are in compliance therewith. 

Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the "JOBS Act").  
 

The Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the “JOBS Act”) became law on April 5, 2012.  The JOBS Act 
substantially reduces the regulatory burdens on “emerging growth companies” (“EGCs”), which are companies with 
less than $1 billion in annual revenue and of which we will qualify during and following an IPO, and also 
substantially relaxes restrictions on communications with potential investors in the context of both public and 
private offerings. Relevant for our purposes EGCs: 
 

 are exempts from Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which requires public companies to obtain an 
auditor attestation report on internal controls; and 

 are exempt from any new accounting standards issued after April 5, 2012 (unless we choose to avail 
ourselves of such new standards in whole—meaning should we choose any new accounting standards we 
will be subject to them all), until such time as any new accounting standards become mandatory for private 
companies. 

Certain other provisions, which may be relevant, including the elimination of restrictions on publicity in 
connection with certain private offerings, will not become effective until the SEC adopts implementing rules. 

Tax Status 

We have elected to be treated for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and intend to qualify annually 
thereafter, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code. As a RIC, we generally will not have to pay corporate-level 
U.S. federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gain that we distribute to our stockholders from our tax 
earnings and profits. Even if we qualify as a RIC, we generally will be subject to corporate-level U.S. federal 
income tax on our undistributed taxable income and could be subject to U.S. federal excise, state, local and foreign 
taxes. To obtain and maintain our RIC tax treatment, we must meet specified source-of-income and asset 
diversification requirements and distribute annually at least 90% of our ordinary income and net short-term capital 
gain in excess of net long-term capital loss, if any. See “Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations.” 

License Agreement 
 

We have entered into a license agreement with Triton Pacific Group, Inc. pursuant to which it has agreed to 
grant us a non-exclusive, royalty-free license to use the name and brand “Triton Pacific”, its related trademarks and 
other proprietary property. Under this agreement, we will have a right to use the “Triton Pacific” name and brand, 
for so long as our Adviser or one of its affiliates remains our investment adviser. Other than with respect to this 
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become and remain profitable could impair our ability to raise capital, expand our business, diversify our 
investments or continue our operations.  

We have not established any limit on the amount of funds we may use from available sources, such as 
borrowings, if any, or proceeds from our offering, to fund distributions (which may reduce the amount of capital 
we ultimately invest in assets). 

 
For a significant time after the commencement of our offering, a substantial portion of our distributions will result 
from expense reimbursements from our Adviser, which are subject to repayment by us within three years. The 
purpose of this arrangement is to reduce our operating expenses, to avoid such distributions being characterized as 
returns of capital for tax purposes and to ensure that no portion of our distributions to stockholders will be paid from 
our offering proceeds. One effect of reducing our operating expenses is to potentially avoid a distribution being 
characterized as a return of capital for tax purposes. Despite this, we may still have distributions which could be 
characterized as a return of capital for GAAP purposes. Shareholders should understand that any such distributions 
are not based on our investment performance, and can only be sustained if we achieve positive investment 
performance in future periods and/or our Adviser continues to make such expense reimbursements. Shareholders 
should also understand that our future repayments will reduce the distributions that they would otherwise receive. 
There can be no assurance that we will achieve such performance in order to sustain these distributions, or be able to 
pay distributions at all.  

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affiliates is restricted. 

We are prohibited under the Company Act from participating in certain transactions with certain of our affiliates 
without the prior approval of our independent directors and, in some cases, the SEC. Any person that owns, directly 
or indirectly, 5% or more of our outstanding voting securities will be deemed to be our affiliate for purposes of the 
Company Act and we will generally be prohibited from buying or selling any securities (other than our securities) 
from or to such affiliate, absent the prior approval of our disinterested directors. The Company Act also prohibits 
certain "joint" transactions with certain of our affiliates, which could include investments in the same companies 
(whether at the same or different times), without prior approval of our disinterested directors and, in some cases, the 
SEC. If a person acquires more than 25% of our voting securities, we are prohibited from buying or selling any 
security (other than any security of which we are the issuer) from or to such person or certain of that person's 
affiliates, or entering into prohibited joint transactions with such persons, absent the prior approval of the SEC. 
Similar restrictions limit our ability to transact business with our officers or directors or their affiliates. As a result of 
these restrictions, we may be prohibited from buying or selling any security (other than any security of which we are 
the issuer) from or to any company owned, in whole or in significant part, by a private equity fund managed by our 
Adviser or its affiliates without the prior approval of the SEC, which may limit the scope of investment 
opportunities that would otherwise be available to us. There is no assurance that any required SEC approvals will be 
obtained.  

A failure on our part to maintain our qualification as a business development company would significantly 
reduce our operating flexibility. 

If we fail to continuously qualify as a business development company, we might become subject to regulation as a 
registered closed-end investment company under the Company Act, which would significantly decrease our 
operating flexibility. In addition, failure to comply with the requirements imposed on business development 
companies by the Company Act could cause the SEC to bring an enforcement action against us.  

Regulations governing our operation as a business development company and RIC will affect our ability to raise, 
and the way in which we raise, additional capital or borrow for investment purposes, which may have a negative 
effect on our growth. 

In order to qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must, among other things, satisfy an annual 
distribution requirement. As a result, in order to fund new investments, we may need to periodically access the 
capital markets to raise cash. We may do so by issuing "senior securities," including borrowing money from banks 
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Under the Company Act, we are required to carry our portfolio investments at market value or, if there is no readily 
available market value, at fair value, as determined by our board of directors. Since most of our investments will not 
be publicly-traded or actively traded on a secondary market, our board of directors will determine their fair value 
quarterly in good faith. 

Factors that may be considered in determining the fair value of our investments include: dealer quotes for securities 
traded on the secondary market for institutional investors, the nature and realizable value of any related collateral, 
the earnings of the portfolio company and its ability to make payments on its indebtedness, the markets in which the 
portfolio company does business, comparison to comparable publicly-traded companies, discounted cash flow and 
other relevant factors. Because such valuations, and particularly valuations of private securities and private 
companies, are inherently uncertain, may fluctuate over short periods of time and may be based on estimates, our 
determinations of fair value may differ materially from the values that would have been used if a ready market for 
these securities existed. Due to this uncertainty, our fair value determinations may cause our net asset value per 
share on a given date to materially understate or overstate the value that we may ultimately realize upon the sale of 
one or more of our investments. 

Because our business model depends to a significant extent upon the business relationships of our Adviser, the 
inability of our Adviser to maintain or develop these relationships, or the failure of these relationships to generate 
investment opportunities, could adversely affect our business. 

We expect that our Adviser and Sub-Adviser will depend on their relationships with private equity sponsors, 
investment banks and commercial banks, and we may rely to a significant extent upon these relationships to provide 
us with potential investment opportunities. If our Adviser and Sub-Adviser fail to maintain their existing 
relationships or develop new relationships with other sponsors or sources of investment opportunities, we may not 
be able to grow our investment portfolio. In addition, individuals with whom our Adviser’s and Sub-Adviser’s 
professionals have relationships are not obligated to provide us with investment opportunities, and, therefore, there 
is no assurance that such relationships will generate investment opportunities for us. 

The amount and timing of distributions are uncertain and distributions may be funded from the proceeds of our 
offering and may represent a return of capital.  

The amount of any distributions we pay is uncertain. We cannot assure you that we will achieve investment results 
that will allow us to make a specified level of cash distributions or year-to-year increases in cash distributions. Our 
distributions to our stockholders may exceed our earnings, particularly during the period before we have 
substantially invested the net proceeds from our offering. We may fund distributions from the uninvested proceeds 
of our public offering and borrowings, and we have not established limits on the amount of funds we may use from 
net offering proceeds or borrowings to make any such distributions.  Therefore, portions of the distributions that we 
pay may represent a return of your capital rather than a return on your investment, which will lower your tax basis in 
your shares and reduce the amount of funds we have for investment in targeted assets.  

We may not be able to pay you distributions, and our distributions may not grow over time. Our ability to pay 
distributions might be adversely affected by, among other things, the effect of one or more of the risk factors 
described in this prospectus. In addition, the inability to satisfy the asset coverage test applicable to us as a BDC can 
limit our ability to pay distributions.  

We will be subject to corporate-level income tax if we are unable to qualify as a RIC under Subchapter M of the 
Code or do not satisfy the annual distribution requirement. 

To obtain and maintain RIC status and be relieved of federal taxes on the income and gains we distribute to our 
stockholders, we must meet the following annual distribution, income source and asset diversification requirements. 

 The annual distribution requirement for a RIC will be satisfied if we distribute to our stockholders on an 
annual basis at least 90% of our net ordinary income and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of 
realized net long-term capital losses, if any. We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible federal excise tax, 
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internalize our operations, we would employ personnel and would be subject to potential liabilities commonly faced 
by employers, such as workers disability and compensation claims, potential labor disputes and other employee-
related liabilities and grievances, all of which could result in substantially higher litigation costs to us.  

If we internalize our management functions, we could have difficulty integrating these functions as a stand-alone 
entity. In addition, we could have difficulty retaining the management personnel we employ. Currently, individuals 
employed by our Adviser and its affiliates perform asset management and general and administrative functions, 
including accounting and financial reporting, for multiple entities. These personnel have a great deal of know-how 
and experience. We may fail to properly identify the appropriate mix of personnel and capital needs to operate as a 
stand-alone entity. An inability to manage an internalization transaction effectively could result in our incurring 
excess costs and/or suffering deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over 
financial reporting. Such deficiencies could cause us to incur additional costs, and our management’s attention could 
be diverted from most effectively managing our investments. 

If we borrow money, the potential for gain or loss on amounts invested in us will be magnified and may increase 
the risk of investing in us. 

Borrowings, also known as leverage, magnify the potential for gain or loss on invested equity capital. The use of 
leverage to partially finance our investments, through borrowings from banks and other lenders, will increase the 
risk of investing in our common stock. If the value of our assets decreases, leveraging would cause our net asset 
value per share to decline more sharply than it otherwise would have had we not leveraged. Similarly, any decrease 
in our income would cause net income to decline more sharply than it would have had we not borrowed. Such a 
decline could negatively affect our ability to make distributions. Leverage is generally considered a speculative 
investment technique. 

Because we intend to distribute substantially all of our income to our stockholders in connection with our 
election to be treated as a RIC, we will continue to need additional capital to finance our growth. If additional 
funds are unavailable or not available on favorable terms, our ability to grow will be impaired. 

In order to qualify for the tax benefits available to RICs and to avoid payment of excise taxes, we intend to distribute 
to our stockholders substantially all of our annual taxable income, except that we may retain certain net capital gains 
for investment, and treat such amounts as deemed distributions to our stockholders. If we elect to treat any amounts 
as deemed distributions, we must pay income taxes at the corporate rate on such deemed distributions on behalf of 
our stockholders. As a result of these requirements, we will likely need to raise capital from other sources to grow 
our business. As a business development company, we generally are required to meet a coverage ratio of total assets, 
less liabilities and indebtedness not represented by senior securities, to total senior securities, which includes all of 
our borrowings and any outstanding preferred stock, of at least 200%. These requirements limit the amounts we may 
borrow. Because we will continue to need capital to grow our investment portfolio, these limitations may prevent us 
from incurring debt and require us to raise additional equity at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so.  

While we expect to be able to borrow and to issue additional debt and equity securities, we cannot assure you that 
debt and equity financing will be available to us on favorable terms or at all. Also, as a business development 
company, we generally will not be permitted to issue equity securities at a price below net asset value per share 
without stockholder approval. If additional funds are not available to us, we could be forced to curtail or cease new 
investment activities, and our net asset value per share and share price could decline. Lastly, any additional equity 
raised will dilute the interest of current investors. 

In selecting and structuring investments appropriate for us, our Adviser and Sub-Adviser will consider the 
investment and tax objectives of the Company and our stockholders as a whole, not the investment, tax or other 
objectives of any stockholder individually. 

Our stockholders may have conflicting investment, tax and other objectives with respect to their investments in us. 
The conflicting interests of individual stockholders may relate to or arise from, among other things, the nature of our 
investments, the structure or the acquisition of our investments, and the timing of disposition of our investments. As 
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"Investment Adviser Agreement — Overview of Our Investment Adviser — Incentive Fee." We cannot predict 
whether, or to what extent, this payment calculation would affect your investment in our stock. 

The involvement of our Adviser's investment professionals in our valuation process may create conflicts of 
interest. 

Our portfolio investments will generally not be in publicly-traded securities. As a result, the value of these securities 
will not be readily available. We will value these securities at fair value as determined in good faith by our Board of 
Directors. In connection with that determination, investment professionals from our Adviser will prepare valuations 
based upon the most recent financial statements and projected financial results available from our investments. The 
participation of our Adviser's investment professionals in our valuation process could result in a conflict of interest 
as our Adviser's management fee is based, in part, on our gross assets. 

Our fee structure may induce our Adviser to cause us to borrow and make speculative investments. 

We will pay management and incentive fees to our Adviser based on our total assets, including indebtedness.  As a 
result, investors in our common stock will invest on a “gross” basis and receive distributions on a “net” basis after 
payment of such fees and other expenses resulting in a lower rate of return than one might achieve through direct 
investments.  Our base management fee will be payable based upon our gross assets, which would include any 
borrowings.  This may encourage our Adviser to use leverage to make additional investments and grow our asset 
base, which would involve the risks attendant to leverage discussed elsewhere in this prospectus. In addition, the 
incentive fee payable by us to our Adviser may create an incentive for it to use leverage and make investments on 
our behalf that are riskier or more speculative than would be the case in the absence of such compensation 
arrangement, which could result in higher investment losses, particularly during cyclical economic downturns.  

The incentive fee payable by us to our Adviser also may create an incentive for our Adviser to favor investments 
that have a deferred interest feature or no interest income, but higher potential total returns. As our Adviser has 
agreed to waive any incentive fee on current income which it could have received in accordance with the Advisers 
Act, it could potentially be incentivized to seek riskier investments with greater capital gains, while eschewing 
investments with an increased current income feature.  

In view of these factors, among other things, our board of directors is charged with protecting our interests by 
monitoring how our Adviser addresses these and other potential conflicts of interests associated with its services and 
compensation.  While our board of directors will not review or approve each investment, our independent directors 
will periodically review our Adviser’s services and portfolio decisions and performance, as well as the 
appropriateness of its compensation in light of such factors. 

Risks Relating to Our Investments 

Our investments may be risky, and we could lose all or part of our investment. 

Investing in small and mid-sized companies involves a number of significant risks. Among other things, these 
companies: 

 May have shorter operating histories, narrower product lines, smaller market shares and/or significant 
customer concentrations than larger businesses, which tend to render them more vulnerable to competitors' 
actions and market conditions, as well as general economic downturns; 

 May have limited financial resources and limited access to capital markets and may be unable to meet their 
obligations under their debt instruments, some of which we may hold or may be senior to us; 

 Are more likely to depend on the management talents and efforts of a small group of persons; therefore, the 
death, disability, resignation or termination of one or more of these persons could have a material adverse 
impact on the company and, in turn, on us. As well, limited resources may make it difficult to attract the 
necessary talent or invest in the necessary infrastructure to help the company grow; 
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If we invest in the securities and obligations of distressed and bankrupt issuers, we might not receive interest or 
other payments. 

We are authorized to invest in the securities and obligations of distressed and bankrupt issuers, including debt 
obligations that are in covenant or payment default. Such investments generally are considered speculative. The 
repayment of defaulted obligations is subject to significant uncertainties. Defaulted obligations might be repaid only 
after lengthy workout or bankruptcy proceedings, during which the issuer of those obligations might not make any 
interest or other payments. 

There may be circumstances where our debt investments could be subordinated to claims of other creditors or we 
could be subject to lender liability claims. 

If one of our portfolio companies were to go bankrupt, depending on the facts and circumstances, including the 
extent to which we actually provided managerial assistance to that portfolio company, a bankruptcy court might 
recharacterize our debt investment and subordinate all or a portion of our claim to that of other creditors. In 
situations where a bankruptcy carries a high degree of political significance, our legal rights may be subordinated to 
other creditors. We may also be subject to lender liability claims for actions taken by us with respect to a borrower’s 
business or in instances where we exercise control over the borrower or render significant managerial assistance. 

We generally will not control our portfolio companies in which we make debt investments. 

We do not expect to control our portfolio companies in which we make debt investments, even though we may have 
board representation or board observation rights, and our debt agreements with such portfolio companies may 
contain certain restrictive covenants. As a result, we are subject to the risk that a portfolio company in which we 
make debt investments may make business decisions with which we disagree and the management of such company, 
as representatives of the holders of their common equity, may take risks or otherwise act in ways that do not serve 
our interests as debt investors. Due to the lack of liquidity for our debt investments in non-traded companies, we 
may not be able to dispose of our interests in our portfolio companies as readily as we would like or at an 
appropriate valuation. As a result, a portfolio company may make decisions that could decrease the value of our 
portfolio holdings. 

Risks associated with Original Issued Discount bonds and Payment in Kind debt instruments. 

We may make debt investments or finance transactions with debt instruments that may either be issued at a discount 
to their face value and provide no interest payments over the life of the instrument (original discount bonds—
“OID”), or we may receive warrants in connection with the origination of loans, or we may make debt investments 
from which we may receive payments in kind (“PIK”) interest payments that are capitalized for some portion or 
over the life of the loan. Each of these types of instruments represent particular kinds of risk as they do not generate 
cash flow, though for tax purposes and for our status as a RIC they will require us to recognize income which must 
be taxed or distributed. 

More specifically, for any warrants received we will be required to determine the cost basis of such warrants (or 
other equity related securities received) based upon their respective fair values on the date of receipt in proportion to 
the total fair value of the debt and warrants (or other equity). Any resulting difference between the face amount of 
the debt and its recorded fair value resulting from the assignment of value to the warrant or other equity instruments 
is treated as original issue discount for which we will be required to immediately recognize income. PIK loans 
generally represent a significantly higher credit risk than coupon loans. PIK loans have unreliable valuations 
because their continuing accruals require judgments about the collectability of the deferred payments and the value 
of any collateral.  PIK accruals may create uncertainty about the source of distributions to shareholders (that is, cash 
distributions might come from offering proceeds or our capital rather than income).  Further, the deferral of PIK 
interest has the effect of increasing assets under management and, therefore, increasing the base management fee at 
a compounding rate, which may create the risk of non-refundable cash payments to the adviser based on accruals 
that may never be realized.  
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collateral to repay their obligations in full before we do. In addition, the value of the collateral in the event of 
liquidation will depend on market and economic conditions, the availability of buyers and other factors. There can 
be no assurance that the proceeds, if any, from the sale or sales of all of the collateral would be sufficient to satisfy 
the loan obligations secured by second priority liens after payment in full of all senior secured obligations. If such 
proceeds are not sufficient to repay amounts owed to junior lenders, then we, to the extent we are not repaid from 
the proceeds of the sale of the collateral, will only have an unsecured claim against the company's remaining assets, 
if any. 

The rights we may have with respect to the collateral securing the loans we make to a company with outstanding 
senior debt may also be limited pursuant to the terms of one or more intercreditor agreements that we enter into with 
the senior lenders. Under such agreements, at any time that senior secured obligations are outstanding, any of the 
following actions that may be taken in respect of the collateral will be at the direction of the holders of the senior 
secured obligations:: the ability to cause the commencement of enforcement proceedings against the collateral; the 
ability to control the conduct of such proceedings; the approval of amendments to collateral documents; releases of 
liens on the collateral; and waivers of past defaults under collateral documents. We may not have the ability to 
control or direct such actions, even if our rights are adversely affected. 

We generally will not control companies to which we provide debt. 

We do not expect to control portfolio companies in which we make debt investments, even though we may have 
board representation or board observation rights and our debt agreements may contain certain restrictive covenants. 
As a result, we are subject to the risk that the management of such a portfolio company may make business 
decisions with which we disagree or, as representative of the holders of their common equity, may take risks or 
otherwise act in ways that do not serve our interests as debt investors. Due to the lack of liquidity for our 
investments in non-publicly-traded companies, we may not be able to dispose of our interests in a portfolio company 
as readily as we would like or at an appropriate valuation. As a result, a company may make decisions that could 
decrease the value of our holdings. 

We may incur lender liability as a result of our lending activities. 

In recent years, a number of judicial decisions have upheld the right of borrowers and others to sue lending 
institutions on the basis of various evolving legal theories generally referred to as “lender liability.”  Lender liability 
is generally based on the idea that a lender has either violated a contractual or implied duty of good faith and fair 
dealing owed to the borrower or has assumed a degree of control over the borrower resulting in the creation of 
fiduciary duties owed to the borrower, its stockholders and its other creditors.  As a lender, we may be subject to 
allegations of lender liability, which could be costly to defend and a distraction to our management and could result 
in significant liability.  

Defaults by our portfolio companies will harm our operating results. 

The failure of a portfolio company in which we make a debt investment to satisfy financial or operating covenants 
imposed by us or other lenders could lead to defaults and, potentially, termination of its loans and foreclosure on its 
secured assets, which could trigger cross-defaults under other agreements and jeopardize the ability of the company 
to meet its obligations under the debt or equity securities that we hold. We may incur expenses to the extent 
necessary to seek recovery upon default or to negotiate new terms with a defaulting portfolio company, which may 
include the waiver of certain financial covenants. 

We may not realize gains from our equity investments. 

We will make direct equity investments in portfolio companies. In addition, when we invest in first and second lien 
senior loans or mezzanine debt, we may acquire warrants to purchase equity securities. Our goal in such investments 
will be primarily to realize gains upon our disposition of such equity interests. However, our equity interests may 
not appreciate in value and, in fact, may decline in value. Accordingly, we may not be able to realize gains from our 
equity investments, and any gains that we do realize on the disposition of any equity interests may not be sufficient 
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rapidly increasing national debt and continuing global economic malaise have kept markets volatile.  Corporate 
interest rate risk premiums, otherwise known as credit spreads, remain at historically high levels, particularly in the 
loan and high yield bond markets. Ongoing disruptive conditions and new governmental legislation or rule-making 
to address them may negatively affect our ability to obtain financing or increase our funding costs which could limit 
our ability to grow our business and fully execute our business strategy and could decrease our earnings, if any.  
Continued volatility could affect how we manage our portfolios and could negatively affect our returns. 

Adverse economic conditions or increased competition for investment opportunities could delay deployment of 
our capital, reduce returns and result in losses. 

Adverse economic conditions may make it difficult to find suitable investments promptly, efficiently or effectively 
in a manner that is most beneficial to our stockholders. Any delay in investment, or inability to find suitable 
investments, could adversely affect our performance, retard or reduce distributions and reduce our overall return to 
investors. We will compete for investments with other BDCs and investment funds (including private equity funds 
and mezzanine funds), as well as commercial banks and other traditional financial services companies and other 
sources of funding. Moreover, alternative investment vehicles, such as hedge funds, increasingly make investments 
in small to mid-sized private U.S. companies. As a result, competition for investment opportunities in private U.S. 
companies is intense and may intensify. Many of our competitors are substantially larger and have considerably 
greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. For example, some competitors may have a lower 
cost of capital and access to funding sources that are not available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may 
have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments than we have. These characteristics could allow our 
competitors to consider a wider variety of investments, establish more relationships and offer better pricing and 
more flexible structuring for portfolio companies than we are able to do. We may lose investment opportunities if 
we do not match our competitors’ pricing, terms and structure and, if we do, we may not be able to achieve 
acceptable returns on our investments or may bear substantial risk of loss of capital. A significant part of our 
competitive advantage stems from the fact that the market for investments in private U.S. companies is underserved 
by traditional commercial banks and other financial sources. A significant increase in the number or the size of our 
competitors in this target market could force us to accept less attractive investment terms. Further, many of our 
competitors have greater experience operating under, or are not subject to, the regulatory restrictions imposed on us 
as a BDC. 

Economic recessions or downturns could impair a company in which we invest and harm our operating results. 

Many of our portfolio companies may be susceptible to economic slowdowns or recessions and may be unable to 
repay our debt investments during these periods.  In that case, our non-performing assets are likely to increase, and 
the value of our portfolio is likely to decrease during these periods. Adverse economic conditions may also decrease 
the value of any collateral securing our senior or second lien secured loans. A prolonged recession may further 
decrease the value of such collateral and result in losses of value in our portfolio and a decrease in our revenues, net 
income, assets and net worth. Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase our funding costs, limit our 
access to the capital markets or result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to us on terms we deem 
acceptable. These events could prevent us from increasing investments and harm our operating results. 

Changes in interest rates may affect our cost of capital and net investment income. 

Since we intend to use debt to finance investments, our net investment income will depend, in part, upon the 
difference between the rate at which we borrow funds and the rate at which we invest those funds.  We expect that 
our long term fixed rate investments will be financed primarily with equity and long term debt.  As a result, we can 
offer no assurance that a significant change in market interest rates will not have a material adverse effect on our net 
investment income. In periods of rising interest rates when we have debt outstanding, our cost of funds will increase, 
which could reduce our net investment income.  We may occasionally use interest rate risk management techniques, 
primarily in highly volatile market conditions, in an effort to limit our exposure to interest rate fluctuations, but we 
will not use such techniques as a means of enhancing our returns. These techniques may include various interest rate 
hedging activities to the extent permitted by the Company Act. These activities may limit our ability to participate in 
the benefits of lower interest rates with respect to the hedged portfolio. Adverse developments resulting from 
changes in interest rates or hedging transactions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
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impact on our business, operating results and financial condition. Losses from terrorist attacks and natural disasters 
are generally uninsurable. 

Risks Related to Business Development Companies 

The requirement that we invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets could preclude us from 
investing in accordance with our current business strategy; conversely, the failure to invest a sufficient portion of 
our assets in qualifying assets could result in our failure to maintain our status as a BDC. 

As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other than “qualifying assets” unless, at the time of and after giving effect 
to such acquisition, at least 70% of our total assets are qualifying assets. Therefore, we may be precluded from 
investing in what we believe are attractive investments if such investments are not qualifying assets. Conversely, if 
we fail to invest a sufficient portion of our assets in qualifying assets, we could lose our status as a BDC, which 
would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and result of operations. Similarly, these 
rules could prevent us from making additional investments in companies in which we have invested, which could 
result in the dilution of our position, or could require us to dispose of investments at an inopportune time in order to 
comply with the Company Act. If we were forced to sell non-qualifying investments in the portfolio for compliance 
purposes, the proceeds from such sale could be significantly less than the current value of such investments. Further, 
any failure by us to comply with the requirements imposed on BDCs by the Company Act could cause the SEC to 
bring an enforcement action against us or expose us to the claims of private litigants.  In addition, if approved by a 
majority of our stockholders, we may elect to withdraw our status as a BDC.  If we withdraw our election or 
otherwise fail to qualify, or maintain our qualification, as a BDC, we may be subject to substantially greater 
regulation under the Company Act as a closed-end investment company.  Compliance with such regulations would 
significantly decrease our operating flexibility and could significantly increase our operating costs. 

Risks Relating to the Ongoing Offering and Our Common Stock 

 

Delays in the application of offering proceeds to our investment program may adversely affect our results. 

To the extent that there are significant delays in the application of the initial or subsequent proceeds of our offering 
to our investment program, from time to time, due to market conditions, the relative lack of suitable investment 
candidates or the time needed for transaction due diligence and execution, it will be more difficult to achieve our 
investment objectives and our returns may be adversely affected.   

As soon as practicable, we intend to offer to repurchase your shares on a quarterly basis. As a result, you will 
have limited opportunities to sell your shares and, to the extent are able to sell your shares under the program 
you may not be able to recover the amount of your investment in our shares. 

As soon as practicable, we intend to commence tender offers to allow you to tender your shares on a quarterly basis 
at a price equal to 90% of the offering price on the date of repurchase. As proposed, the share repurchase program 
will include numerous restrictions that limit your ability to sell your shares. We intend to limit the number of shares 
repurchased pursuant to our proposed share repurchase program as follows: (1) we currently intend to limit the 
number of shares repurchased during any calendar year to the number of shares we can repurchase with the proceeds 
we receive from the sale of shares of our common stock under our distribution reinvestment plan (at the discretion of 
our board of directors, we may also use cash on hand, cash available from borrowings and cash from liquidation of 
securities investments as of the end of the applicable period to repurchase shares); (2) we do not expect to 
repurchase shares in any calendar year in excess of 10% of the weighted average number of shares outstanding in 
the prior calendar year, or 2.5% in any quarter; and (3) to the extent that the number of shares tendered to us for 
repurchase exceeds the number of shares that we are able to purchase, we will repurchase shares on a pro rata basis, 
not on a first-come, first-served basis. Further, we will have no obligation to repurchase shares if the repurchase 
would violate applicable restrictions on distributions under federal or Maryland law that prohibit distributions that 
would cause a corporation to fail to meet statutory tests of solvency. These limits may prevent us from 
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additional shares in this or future public offerings, issue equity interests in private offerings or issue share-based 
awards to our independent directors or to employees of our Adviser or Administrator. To the extent we issue 
additional equity interests after your purchase in our offering, your percentage ownership interest in us will be 
diluted. In addition, depending upon the terms and pricing of any additional offerings and the value of our 
investments, you may also experience dilution in the book value and fair value of your shares. 

Distribution Reinvestment Plan will dilute the interest of those who do not Opt-in. 

We currently have a dividend re-investment plan that requires participants to “Opt-in” to re-invest dividends paid. 
For those investors who do not “Opt-in” to the dividend re-investment plan their interest in the company will be 
diluted over time, relative to those investors who do “Opt-in” to have their distributions used to purchase additional 
shares of our common stock. 

We may issue preferred stock as a means to access additional capital, which could adversely affect common 
shareholders and subject us to specific regulation under the Company Act.  

We may issue preferred stock as a means to increase flexibility in structuring future financings and acquisitions. 
However, preferred stock has rights and preferences that would adversely affect the holders of common stock, 
including preferences as to cash distributions and preferences upon the liquidation or dissolution of the Company. 
As well, every issuance of preferred stock will be required to comply with the requirements of the 1940 Act. The 
1940 Act requires, among other things, that (1) immediately after issuance and before any distribution is made with 
respect to our common stock and before any purchase of common stock is made, such preferred stock together with 
all other senior securities must not exceed an amount equal to 50% of our total assets after deducting the amount of 
such distribution or purchase price, as the case may be, and (2) the holders of shares of preferred stock, if any are 
issued, must be entitled as a class to elect two directors at all times and to elect a majority of the directors if 
distributions on such preferred stock are in arrears by two years or more. Certain matters under the Company Act 
require the separate vote of the holders of any issued and outstanding preferred stock.  

Certain provisions of our charter and bylaws as well as provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law 
could deter takeover attempts and have an adverse impact on the value of our common stock. 

Our charter and bylaws, as well as certain statutory and regulatory requirements, contain certain provisions that may 
have the effect of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire us. Under the Maryland General Corporation 
Law, “control shares” acquired in a “control share acquisition” have no voting rights except to the extent approved 
by a vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding shares owned by the acquirer, by 
officers or by employees who are directors of the corporation. Our bylaws contain a provision exempting from the 
Control Share Acquisition Act under the Maryland General Corporation Law any and all acquisitions by any person 
of our shares of stock. Our board may amend the bylaws to remove that exemption in whole or in part without 
stockholder approval if our board determines that removing that exemption is in our best interest and the best 
interests of our stockholders. The Control Share Acquisition Act (if we amend our bylaws to be subject to that Act) 
may discourage others from trying to acquire control of us and increase the difficulty of consummating any offer. 
Under the Maryland General Corporation Law, specified “business combinations,” including certain mergers, 
consolidations, issuances of equity securities and other transactions, between a Maryland corporation and any person 
who owns 10% or more of the voting power of the corporation’s outstanding voting stock, and certain other parties, 
(each an “interested stockholder”), or an affiliate of the interested stockholder, are prohibited for five years after the 
most recent date on which the interested stockholder becomes an interested stockholder. Thereafter any of the 
specified business combinations must be approved by a super majority vote of the stockholders unless, among other 
conditions, the corporation’s common stockholders receive a minimum price for their shares. See “Description of 
Our Securities—Business Combinations.” 

Under the Maryland General Corporation Law, certain statutory provisions permit a corporation that is subject to the 
Exchange Act and that has at least three outside directors to be subject to certain corporate governance provisions 
that may be inconsistent with the corporation’s charter and bylaws. Among other provisions, a board of directors 
may classify itself without the vote of stockholders. Further, the board of directors, by electing into certain statutory 
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We may have difficulty paying our required distributions if we recognize income before or without receiving cash 
representing such income. 

For federal income tax purposes, we may be required to recognize taxable income in circumstances in which we do 
not receive a corresponding payment in cash. For example, if we hold debt obligations that are treated under 
applicable tax rules as having original issue discount (such as debt instruments with payment-in-kind (“PIK”) 
interest, or issued with warrants, or, in certain cases, with increasing interest rates), we must include in income each 
year a portion of the original issue discount that accrues over the life of the obligation, regardless of whether cash 
representing such income is received by us in the same taxable year. We may also have to include in income other 
amounts that we have not yet received in cash, such as deferred loan origination fees that are paid after origination 
of the loan or are paid in non-cash compensation such as warrants or stock. We anticipate that a portion of our 
income may constitute original issue discount or other income required to be included in taxable income prior to 
receipt of cash. Further, we may elect to amortize market discounts and include such amounts in our taxable income 
in the current year, instead of upon disposition, as an election not to do so would limit our ability to deduct interest 
expenses for tax purposes. 

Because any original issue discount or other amounts accrued will be included in our investment company taxable 
income for the year of the accrual, we may be required to make a distribution to our stockholders in order to satisfy 
the annual distribution requirement, even though we will not have received any corresponding cash amount. As a 
result, we may have difficulty meeting the annual distribution requirement necessary to obtain and maintain RIC tax 
treatment under the Code. We may have to sell some of our investments at times and/or at prices we would not 
consider advantageous, raise additional debt or equity capital or forgo new investment opportunities for this purpose. 
If we are not able to obtain cash from other sources, we may fail to qualify for RIC tax treatment and thus become 
subject to corporate-level income tax. For additional discussion regarding the tax implications of a RIC, see 
“Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations—Taxation as a Regulated Investment Company.” 

You may receive shares of our common stock as distributions, which could result in adverse tax consequences to 
you. 

In order to satisfy the annual distribution requirement applicable to RICs, we may have the ability to declare a large 
portion of a distribution in shares of our common stock instead of in cash.  As long as a portion of such distribution 
is paid in cash (which portion can be as low as 10% for our taxable years ending on or before December 31) and 
certain requirements are met, the entire distribution to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits 
would be a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes.  As a result, a stockholder would be taxed on the entire 
distribution in the same manner as a cash distribution, even though a portion of the distribution was paid in shares of 
our common stock. 

You may have current tax liability on distributions you elect to reinvest in our common stock but would not 
receive cash from such distributions to pay such tax liability. 

If you participate in our distribution reinvestment plan, you will be deemed to have received, and for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes will be taxed on, the amount reinvested in our common stock to the extent the amount 
reinvested was not a tax-free return of capital.  As a result, unless you are a tax-exempt entity, you may have to use 
funds from other sources to pay your tax liability on the value of our common stock received from the distribution. 

If we do not qualify as a “publicly offered regulated investment company,” as defined in the Code, you will be 
taxed as though you received a distribution of some of our expenses. 

A “publicly offered regulated investment company” is a regulated investment company whose shares are either (i) 
continuously offered pursuant to a public offering, (ii) regularly traded on an established securities market or (iii) 
held by at least 500 persons at all times during the taxable year.  If we are not a publicly offered regulated 
investment company for any period, a non-corporate shareholder’s pro rata portion of our affected expenses, 
including our management fees, will be treated as an additional distribution to the shareholder and will be deductible 
by such shareholder only to the extent permitted under the limitations described below.  For non-corporate 
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PART II 
  
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities 

Market Information 

There is no established public trading market for our common stock, and we do not expect one to develop. 
Therefore, there is a risk that a shareholder may not be able to sell our stock at a time or price acceptable to the 
shareholder, or at all. 

Continuous Public Offering of Common Stock 

We are currently selling our shares of common stock on a continuous basis. On June 14, 2011, our 
company filed our Registration Statement with the SEC to register our Offering. The Registration Statement was 
declared effective by the SEC on September 4, 2012 and our company commenced its initial Offering. Our initial 
offering terminated on March 1, 2016 and we commenced the follow-on offering of our shares on March 17, 2016.  

In our ongoing follow-on offering, we are initially offering at an offering price of $15.33 per share.  
However, if our net asset value increases, our offering price will be adjusted to ensure that shares are not sold at a 
price per share, after deduction of selling commissions and dealer manager fees, that is below our net asset value per 
share. Therefore, persons who subscribe for shares of our common stock in our offering must submit subscriptions 
for a certain dollar amount, rather than a number of shares of common stock and, as a result, may receive fractional 
shares of our common stock. In connection with each closing of sales of our shares in our offering, our board of 
directors or a committee thereof is required within 48 hours of the time of such closing, to make the determination 
that we are not selling shares of our common stock at a price which, after deducting the sales load, is below our then 
current net asset value per share. The board of directors or a committee thereof will consider the following factors, 
among others, in making such determination: 

 The net asset value per share of our common stock disclosed in the most recent periodic report we filed 
with the SEC; 

 Our management’s assessment of whether any material change in our net asset value per share has occurred 
(including through the realization of net gains on the sale of our portfolio investments) from the period 
beginning on the date of the most recently disclosed net asset value per share to the period ending two days 
prior to the date of the closing; and 

 The magnitude of the difference between the net asset value per share disclosed in the most recent periodic 
report we filed with the SEC and our management’s assessment of any material change in the net asset 
value per share since the date of the most recently disclosed net asset value per share, and the offering price 
of the shares of our common stock at the date of closing. 

Importantly, this determination does not require that we calculate net asset value per share in connection 
with each closing and sale of shares of our common stock, but instead it involves the determination by the board of 
directors or a committee thereof that, at the time at which the closing and sale is made, we are not selling shares of 
our common stock at a price which, after deducting the sales load, is materially below the then current net asset 
value per share. 

Moreover, to the extent that there is even a remote possibility that we may (i) issue shares of our common 
stock at a price which, after deducting the sales load, is materially below the then current net asset value per share of 
our common stock at the time at which the closing and sale is made or (ii) trigger the undertaking (which we 
provided to the SEC in the registration statement to which this prospectus is a part) to suspend the offering of shares 
of our common stock pursuant to this prospectus if our net asset value per share fluctuates by certain amounts in 
certain circumstances until the prospectus is amended, our board of directors or a committee thereof will elect, in the 
case of clause (i) above, either to postpone the closing until such time that there is no longer the possibility of the 
occurrence of such event or to undertake to determine net asset value per share within two days prior to any such 
sale to ensure that such sale will not be at a price which, after deducting the sales load, is materially below our then 
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The per share amount of distributions on Class A and Class T shares will likely differ because of different 
allocations of class-specific expenses. For example, distributions on Class T shares will likely be lower than on 
Class A shares because Class T shares are subject to an annual distribution fee for a period of time. From time to 
time, we may also pay special interim distributions in the form of cash or shares of our common stock at the 
discretion of our board of directors. For example, our board of directors may periodically declare stock distributions 
in order to reduce the net asset value per share of a share class if necessary to ensure that we do not sell shares of the 
applicable class at a price per share, after deducting upfront selling commissions, if any, that is below the net asset 
value per share of the applicable class. The timing and amount of any future distributions to stockholders will be 
subject to applicable legal restrictions and the sole discretion of our board of directors.  

We may fund our cash distributions to stockholders from any sources of funds legally available to us, 
including offering proceeds, borrowings, net investment income from operations, capital gains proceeds from the 
sale of assets, non-capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets, dividends or other distributions paid to us on 
account of preferred and common equity investments in portfolio companies and expense reimbursements from our 
Adviser. We have not established limits on the amount of funds we may use from available sources to make 
distributions.  To date, all distributions have been funded solely from net investment income from operations and 
capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets.  

It is possible that a portion of the distributions we make will represent a return of capital. A return of capital 
generally is a return of stockholders’ investment rather than a return of earnings or gains derived from our 
investment activities and will be made after deducting the fees and expenses payable in connection with our 
continuous public offering, including any fees payable to our Adviser. Moreover, a return of capital will generally 
not be taxable, but will reduce each stockholder’s cost basis in our common stock, and will result in a higher 
reported capital gain or lower reported capital loss when the common stock on which such return of capital was 
received is sold. Stockholders will be notified of the sources of our distributions (i.e., paid from ordinary income, 
paid from net capital gains on the sale of securities, and/or a return of capital). See “Material U.S. Federal Income 
Tax Considerations.”  

We intend to make our regular distributions in the form of cash, out of assets legally available for 
distribution, unless stockholders elect to receive their distributions in additional shares of our common stock under 
our distribution reinvestment plan. Although distributions paid in the form of additional shares of common stock 
will generally be subject to U.S. federal, state, and local taxes in the same manner as cash distributions, stockholders 
who elect to participate in our distribution reinvestment plan will not receive any corresponding cash distributions 
with which to pay any such applicable taxes. Stockholders receiving distributions in the form of additional shares of 
common stock will be treated as receiving a distribution in the amount of the fair market value of our shares of 
common stock. If stockholders hold shares in the name of a broker or financial intermediary, they should contact 
such broker or financial intermediary regarding their option to elect to receive distributions in additional shares of 
our common stock under our distribution reinvestment plan in lieu of cash. 

 

  

Fiscal 2015   

January 20, 2015   $ 0.07545   $ 17,314
April 13, 2015 $ 0.11600   $ 28,334
April 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 9,880
May 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 12,634
June 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 13,295
July 30, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 13,676
August 28, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 14,511
September 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 16,287
October 22.2015 $ 0.04500   $ 19,484
November 25, 2015 $ 0.04500   $ 21,169
December 24, 2015 $ 0.04500   $ 23,491
January 28, 2016 $ 0.04500   $ 25,244
February 18, 2016 $ 0.04500   $ 26,477

Distribution
Per Share Amount
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There is no material difference between the aggregate books cost and tax costs of the Company’s 

investments for federal income tax purposes. 
 

Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

The following selected financial data for the year ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is derived 
from our financial statements. The following selected financial data for Triton Pacific Investment Company, Inc. 
should be read in conjunction with “Item 7.—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations” and “Item 8. —Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” included elsewhere in this 
report. 

 
(1) We formally commenced operations in 2014. Prior to such date, we had no operations except for matters relating

to our organization and registration as a non-diversified, closed-end management investment company. 
(2) The per share data was derived by using the weighted average shares outstanding during the years ended

December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
(3) The per share data for distributions reflects the actual amount of distributions paid per share during the 

applicable period.   
(4) The total return for each year presented was calculated by taking the net asset value per share as of the end of the

applicable year, adding the cash distributions per share which were declared during the applicable.  

 

2015

Distributable realized gains (long-term capital gains) $ 2,192               $ 1,875               $ -                      
Distributable ordinary income (income and short-term capital gains) 9,184                 16,211             -                      
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 177,748             (788)                -                      
Total $ 189,124   $ 17,298             $ -                      

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013

  

Statements of operations data:
Total investment income $       176,042 $         16,319 $                  - $ -                             
Operating expenses

Total operating expenses       620,548       249,465       311,507                     79,733 
Less: Expense reimbursement from sponsor     (584,998)     (249,357)     (391,240) -                             
Net operating expenses         35,550              108       (79,733)                     79,733 
Net investment income (loss)       140,492         16,211         79,733                   (79,733)

Total net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments       185,858           1,087                  - -                             
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations $       326,350 $         17,298 $         79,733 $                   (79,733)

Per share data:

Net investment income (loss)—basic
(2) $             0.41 $             0.14  $             7.47  $                     (26.88)

Net investment income (loss)—diluted
(2) $             0.41 $             0.14  $             6.81                     (26.88)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations—basic
(2) $             0.96 $             0.15  $             7.47                     (26.88)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations—diluted
(2) $             0.96 $             0.15  $             6.81  $                     (26.88)

Distributions declared
(3) $       190,075 $                  -  $                  - $ -                             

Balance sheet data:
Total assets $    7,611,888 $    3,667,097 $    1,328,628 $                   532,425 

Total net assets $    7,326,653 $    1,916,867 $       200,003 $                     21,517 

Other data:

Total return
(4) 7.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Number of portfolio company investments at period end 22 10 0 0
Total portfolio investments for the period $    4,270,750 $    1,725,001 $                  - $ -                             
Proceeds from sales and prepayments of investments $       414,971 $       255,663 $                  - $ -                             

Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 339,304     114,991     10,675       

Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted 339,304     114,991     11,713       

December 31, 2012
(1)

2014 2013

Period from
April 29, 2011

(Inception) to

2015

Year Ended December 31,
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We are a publically registered, non-traded fund focused on private equity, structured as a business 
development company that primarily makes equity, structured equity, and debt investments in small to mid-sized 
private U.S. companies.  Structured equity refers to derivative investment products, including convertible notes and 
warrants, designed to facilitate highly customized risk-return objectives.  Our private equity investments will 
generally take the form of direct investments in common and preferred equity, as well as structured equity 
investments such as convertible notes and warrants.  We are an externally managed closed-end, non-diversified 
management investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development company under the 
Company Act. We are externally managed by our Adviser, which is a registered investment adviser under the 
Advisers Act.  Our Adviser is responsible for sourcing potential investments, conducting due diligence on 
prospective investments, analyzing investment opportunities, structuring investments, and monitoring our portfolio 
on an ongoing basis.  TFA Associates, LLC, our affiliate, serves as our Administrator. Each of these companies is 
affiliated with Triton Pacific, a private equity investment management firm, and its subsidiary, TPCP, a private 
equity investment fund management company, each focused on debt and private equity investments in small to mid-
sized private companies.  In addition, we have elected and intend to annually qualify to be taxed, for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes, as a RIC under the Code. 

Our investment objectives are to maximize our investment portfolio’s total return by generating long-term 
capital appreciation from our private equity investments and current income from our debt investments.  We intend 
to make both our debt and private equity investments in small to mid-sized private U.S. companies either alone or 
together with other private equity sponsors.  

We are currently offering for sale a maximum of $300,000,000 of our shares of common stock. We 
commenced our initial continuous public offering of shares through our initial registration statement (File No. 333-
174873) that was declared effective by the SEC on September 4, 2012. Our initial offering terminated on March 1, 
2016. On March 17, 2016, our registration statement for our follow-on offering of common stock was declared 
effective by the SEC.  In that follow-on offering, we are initially offering Class A shares and intend to offer Class T 
shares in the future, subject to obtaining a satisfactory exemptive relief order from the SEC.  We are currently 
offering to sell our Class A shares up to the maximum offering amount, at an initial offering price of $15.33 per 
Class A share.  Our offering is being conducted on a “best efforts” basis pursuant to a registration statement on Form 
N-2 filed with the SEC under the Securities Act.  As of March 30, 2016, in both our initial and follow-on offerings, 
we have sold an aggregate of 672,670.79 shares of common stock for gross proceeds of approximately $9,893,475, 
including 14,815 shares of common stock sold to Triton Pacific Adviser in exchange for gross proceeds of 
$200,003. 

Our Adviser 

Our Adviser is a Delaware limited liability company and is registered as an investment adviser under the 
Advisers Act.  Our Adviser is majority owned by Triton Pacific affiliates, which are controlled by Mr. Faggen. The 
persons responsible for making investment decisions on behalf of Triton Pacific will also be responsible for making 
investment decisions on behalf of our Adviser.  Mr. Faggen is the principal officer of the Adviser. 

Mr. Craig J. Faggen, Mr. Ivan Faggen, Mr. Joseph Davis, Mr. Thomas M. Scott, and Mr. Sean Gjos will 
initially be members of the investment committee of our Adviser. For more information on the background of these 
members of the Adviser see “Portfolio Management—Our Investment Adviser.” 

Our Sub-Adviser 

Our Adviser has engaged ZAIS to act as our investment sub-adviser. ZAIS assists our Adviser with 
identifying, evaluating, negotiating and structuring syndicated debt investments and makes investment 
recommendations for approval by our Adviser.   ZAIS is a Delaware limited liability company and is a registered 
investment adviser under the Advisers Act and had approximately $4.157 billion in assets under management as of 
December 31, 2015.  ZAIS is not an affiliate of us or our Adviser and does not own any of our shares.  Vincent 
Ingato, Portfolio Manager and Managing Director for ZAIS, will be initially responsible for the day-to-day 
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commitment, origination, structuring or diligence fees, monitoring fees, fees for providing managerial assistance and 
possibly consulting fees and performance-based fees. Any such fees will be recognized as earned. 

Expenses  

Our primary operating expenses will be the payment of advisory fees and other expenses under the 
proposed investment adviser agreement. The advisory fees will compensate our Adviser for its work in identifying, 
evaluating, negotiating, executing, monitoring and servicing our investments. 

We will bear all other expenses of our operations and transactions, including (without limitation) fees and 
expenses relating to: 

-corporate and organizational expenses relating to offerings of our common stock, subject to 
limitations included in the investment advisory and management services agreement; 

-the cost of calculating our net asset value, including the cost of any third-party valuation services; 

-the cost of effecting sales and repurchase of shares of our common stock and other securities; 

-investment advisory fees; 

-fees payable to third parties relating to, or associated with, making investments and valuing 
investments, including fees and expenses associated with performing due diligence reviews of prospective 
investments; 

-transfer agent and custodial fees; 

-fees and expenses associated with marketing efforts; 

-federal and state registration fees; 

-federal, state and local taxes; 

-independent directors’ fees and expenses; 

-costs of proxy statements, stockholders’ reports and notices; 

-fidelity bond, directors and officers/errors and omissions liability insurance and other insurance 
premiums; 

-direct costs such as printing, mailing, long distance telephone, and staff; 

-fees and expenses associated with independent audits and outside legal costs, including 
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; 

-costs associated with our reporting and compliance obligations under the Company Act and 
applicable federal and state securities laws; 

-brokerage commissions for our investments; 

-legal, accounting and other costs associated with structuring, negotiating, documenting and 
completing our investment transactions; 



48 

 

 
 The following tables summarize the composition of our investment portfolio at amortized cost and fair 
value as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (there was no portfolio activity for the year ended December 31, 2013): 

 

(1) Amortized cost represents the original cost adjusted for the amortization of premiums and/or accretion of discounts, as 
applicable, on investments. 

 

The table below describes investments by industry classification and enumerates the percentage, by fair 
value, of the total portfolio assets in such industries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (there was no portfolio 
activity for the year ended December 31, 2013): 

Net Investment Activity   2015

Purchases   $                4,270,750 $ 1,725,001 $                             -  
Sales and Redemptions                    (414,971)                  (255,663)                               - 
Net Portfolio Activity   $                3,855,779 $                1,469,338 $                               - 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013

Senior Secured Loans—First Lien $ 2,426,089   $ 2,389,377   43% $       1,351,927   $       1,351,932   92%

Senior Secured Loans—Second Lien 1,065,681   1,041,875   19%          120,167            119,375   8%

Subordinated Debt 609,219 609,219 11%                    -                      -   0%

Equity/Other 1,250,000 1,488,266 27%                    -                      -   0%

Total $ 5,350,989   $ 5,528,737   100% $       1,472,094   $       1,471,307   100%

Investments at 
Fair Value

Investments at 
Amortized 

Cost
(1)

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Investments at 
Fair Value

Investments at 
Amortized 

Cost
(1)

Fair Value 
Percentage of 
Total Portfolio

Fair Value 
Percentage of 
Total Portfolio

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

Number of Portfolio Companies 22 10
% Variable Rate (based on fair value) 62.1% 100.0%
% Fixed Rate (based on fair value) 11.0% 0.0%
% Non-Income Producing Equity or Other Investments (based on fair value) 26.9% 0.0%
Average Annual EBITDA of Portfolio Companies $101.6MM $96.0 MM
Weighted Average Credit Rating of Investments that were Rated B2 B2
% of Investments on Non-Accrual —  —  
Gross Portfolio Yield Prior to Leverage (based on amortized cost) 5.4% 6.0%
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The following table shows the distribution of our investments on the 1 to 8 scale at fair value as of December 
31, 2015 and 2014: 

 

Results of Operations  

We commenced operations on June 25, 2014, when we raised in excess of $2,500,000 in accordance with 
our minimum offering requirement.  Prior to satisfying the minimum offering requirement, we had no operations 
except for matters relating to our organization and registration as a non-diversified, closed-end management 
investment company. Additionally, investment in portfolio companies did not commence until October 1, 2014.  As 
a result, no comparisons with the comparable periods for have been included for some items.  

Investment Income  

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we generated $176,042 and $16,319, respectively, in 
investment income in the form of interest and fees earned on senior secured loans.  Such revenues represent 
$159,939 of cash income and $16,103 in non-cash portions related to the accretion of discounts and paid-in-kind 
interest for the year ended December 31, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2014 such revenues represent 
$15,438 of cash income and $881 in non-cash portions related to the accretion of discounts. We expect the dollar 
amount of interest that we earn to continue to increase as the size of our investment portfolio increases.   

Operating Expenses   

Total operating expenses before reimbursement from the sponsor and management fee waiver totaled 
$620,548 for the year ended December 31, 2015, and consisted of base management fees, adviser and administrator 
reimbursements, professional fees, insurance expense, directors’ fees and other general and administrative fees. The 
base management fees for the year were $101,336 and the incentive fees for the year were $37,014.   Pursuant to the 
Expense Reimbursement Agreement (discussed below), the sponsor reimbursed the Company $584,998 for the year 
ended December 31, 2015. 

Total operating expenses before reimbursement from the sponsor and management fee waiver totaled 
$249,465 for the year ended December 31, 2014, and consisted of base management fees, adviser and administrator 
reimbursements, professional fees, insurance expense, directors’ fees and other general and administrative fees. The 
base management fees for the year were $57,432 and the incentive fees for the year were $217.   Pursuant to the 
Expense Reimbursement Agreement (discussed below), the sponsor reimbursed the Company $249,357 for the year 
ended December 31, 2014. 

Total operating expenses before reimbursement from the sponsor and management fee waiver totaled 
$326,442 for the year ended December 31, 2013, and consisted of base management fees, adviser and administrator 

  

Investment Rating   Percentage Percentage

1   $                 -   0.0% $                 -   0.0%

2                   -   0.0%     124,063   8.4%

3       243,530   7.1%     608,043   41.3%

4    1,681,879   49.0%     614,463   41.8%

5  1,505,843 43.9%     124,738 8.5%

6                 - 0.0%                 - 0.0%

7                 - 0.0%                 - 0.0%

8   -                 0.0% -                 0.0%

  $  3,431,252   100.0% $  1,471,307   100.0%

December 31, 2015

Fair Value

December 31, 2014

Fair Value
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Based on 10,675 and 11,713 weighted average common shares outstanding for the year ended December 
31, 2013, basic and diluted, respectively, our per share net increase in net assets resulting from operations was $7.47 
and $6.81, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources  

We will generate cash primarily from the net proceeds of our offering, and from cash flows from fees (such 
as management fees), interest and dividends earned from our investments and principal repayments and proceeds 
from sales of our investments. Our primary use of funds will be investments in companies, and payments of our 
expenses and distributions to holders of our common stock.  

The offering of our common stock represents a continuous offering of our shares. The initial offering of our 
common stock commenced on September 4, 2012 and terminated on March 1, 2016.  On March 17, 2016, we 
commenced the follow-on offering of our common stock, which follow-on offering is currently ongoing.  We intend 
to file post-effective amendments to our registration statement to allow us to continue our offering for three years. 
The Dealer Manager is not required to sell any specific number or dollar amount of shares but will use its best 
efforts to sell the shares offered. The minimum investment in shares of our common stock is $5,000.  

In our ongoing follow-on offering, we are initially offering at an offering price of $15.33 per share.  
However, if our net asset value increases, our offering price will be adjusted to ensure that shares are not sold at a 
price per share, after deduction of selling commissions and dealer manager fees, that is below our net asset value per 
share. Promptly following any such adjustment to the offering price per share, we will file a prospectus supplement 
with the SEC disclosing the adjusted offering price, and we appropriately publish the updated information. The 
Dealer Manager for this offering is an affiliate of our Adviser. 

During the year ended December 31, 2015, we sold 303,503.55 shares of our common stock for gross 
proceeds of $4,500,759 at an average price per share of $14.83.  The gross proceeds received during the year ended 
December 31, 2015 include reinvested stockholder distributions of $96,756 for which we issued 6,789.86 shares of 
common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2015, we also incurred offering costs of $9,922 in connection 
with the sale of our common stock, which consisted primarily of legal, due diligence and printing fees. The offering 
costs were offset against capital in excess of par value on our financial statements. The sales commissions and dealer 
manager fees related to the sale of our common stock were $398,367 for the year ended December 31, 2015. These 
sales commissions and fees include $98,817 retained by the dealer manager, Triton Pacific Securities, LLC, which is 
an affiliate of ours. 

We may borrow funds to make investments at any time, including before we have fully invested the 
proceeds of our offering, to the extent we determine that additional capital would allow us to take advantage of 
investment opportunities, or if our board of directors determines that leveraging our portfolio would be in our best 
interests and the best interests of our stockholders.  We have not yet decided, however, whether, and to what extent, 
we will finance portfolio investments using debt. We do not currently anticipate issuing any preferred stock. 

Contractual Obligations  

We have entered into certain contracts under which we have material future commitments. On July 27, 
2012, we entered into the investment advisory agreement with Triton Pacific Adviser, LLC in accordance with the 
1940 Act. The investment advisory agreement became effective on June 25, 2014, the date that we met the minimum 
offering requirement. Triton Pacific Adviser serves as our investment advisor in accordance with the terms of our 
investment advisory agreement. Payments under our investment advisory agreement in each reporting period will 
consist of (i) a management fee equal to a percentage of the value of our gross assets and (ii) a capital gains 
incentive fee based on our performance.  

On July 27, 2012, we entered into the administration agreement with TFA Associates, LLC pursuant to 
which TFA Associates furnishes us with administrative services necessary to conduct our day-to-day operations. 
TFA Associates is reimbursed for administrative expenses it incurs on our behalf in performing its obligations. Such 
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Our distributions previously were paid quarterly in arrears.  On January 15, 2015, our Board declared a 
quarterly cash distribution for the fourth quarter of 2014 of $0.07545 per share payable on January 30, 2015, to 
shareholders of record as of January 20, 2015. In addition, on April 2, 2015, our Board declared a cash distribution 
for the first quarter of 2015 of $0.116 per share payable on April 13, 2015, to shareholders of record as of April 6, 
2015. Commencing in April 2015, and subject to our board of directors’ discretion and applicable legal restrictions, 
our board of directors began to authorize and declare a monthly distribution amount per share of our common stock, 
payable in advance.  We then calculate each stockholder’s specific distribution amount for the month using record 
and declaration dates, and your distributions will begin to accrue on the date we accept your subscription for shares 
of our common stock.  On January 22, 2016 the Company authorized and declared a cash distribution of $0.045 per 
share for the month of January 2016, to the shareholders of record as of January 28, 2016.  On February 16, 2016 the 
Company authorized and declared a cash distribution of $0.045 per share for the month of February 2016, to the 
shareholders of record as of February 18, 2016.  No distributions were declared for the years before 2015. 

The Company may fund its cash distributions to stockholders from any sources of funds legally available to 
it, including offering proceeds, borrowings, net investment income from operations, capital gains proceeds from the 
sale of assets, non-capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets, dividends or other distributions paid to the 
Company on account of preferred and common equity investments in portfolio companies and expense 
reimbursements from the Adviser. The Company has not established limits on the amount of funds it may use from 
available sources to make distributions.  
  

The following table reflects the sources of the cash distributions on a tax basis that the Company paid on its 
common stock during the year ended December 31, 2015 (no distributions were paid prior to 2015): 

 
 

  

Fiscal 2015   

January 20, 2015   $ 0.07545   $ 17,314
April 13, 2015 $ 0.11600   $ 28,334
April 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 9,880
May 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 12,634
June 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 13,295
July 30, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 13,676
August 28, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 14,511
September 29, 2015 $ 0.04000   $ 16,287
October 22.2015 $ 0.04500   $ 19,484
November 25, 2015 $ 0.04500   $ 21,169
December 24, 2015 $ 0.04500   $ 23,491

Distribution

Per Share Amount

Distribution Distribution

Source of Distribution Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Offering proceeds -$                -                  -$                -              

Borrowings -                  -                  -                  -              

Net investment income (prior to expense reimbursement)
(1) -                  -                  -                  -              

Short-term capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets 7,002              4% -                  -              

Long-term capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets -                  -                  -                  -              

Expense reimbursement from sponsor 183,073          96% -                  -              
Total 190,075$        100% -$                0%

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2015, 90.9% of the Company’s gross investment income 
was attributable to cash income earned, and 9.1% was attributable to non-cash accretion of
discount and paid-in-kind interest.

2015 2014
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Aggregate realized capital losses will equal the sum of the amounts by which the net sales prices of our investments, 
when sold, is less than the original cost of such investments since inception. Aggregate unrealized capital 
depreciation will equal the sum of the difference, if negative, between the valuation of each investment as of the 
applicable date and the original cost of such investment.  At the end of the applicable period, the amount of capital 
gains that serves as the basis for our calculation of the capital gains incentive fee will equal the aggregate realized 
capital gains less aggregate realized capital losses and less aggregate unrealized capital depreciation with respect to 
our portfolio investments. If this number is positive at the end of such period, then the incentive fee for such period 
will be equal to 20% of such amount, less the aggregate amount of any incentive fees paid in all prior periods. 

While the investment advisory agreement neither includes nor contemplates the inclusion of unrealized 
gains in the calculation of the capital gains incentive fee, pursuant to an interpretation of an American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants, or AICPA, Technical Practice Aid for investment companies, we include unrealized 
gains in the calculation of the capital gains incentive fee expense and related accrued capital gains incentive fee. 
This accrual reflects the incentive fees that would be payable to our Advisor as if our entire portfolio was liquidated 
at its fair value as of the balance sheet date even though our Adviser is not entitled to an incentive fee with respect to 
unrealized gains unless and until such gains are actually realized.  

The organizational and offering expense and other expense reimbursements may include a portion of costs 
incurred by our Adviser or its members or affiliates on our behalf for legal, accounting, printing and other offering 
expenses, including for marketing, salaries and direct expenses of its employees, employees of its affiliates and 
others while engaged in registering and marketing the shares of our common stock, which shall include development 
of marketing and marketing presentations and training and educational meetings and generally coordinating the 
marketing process for us and may also include amounts reimbursed by us to our Dealer Manager for actual bona fide 
due diligence expenses incurred by our Dealer Manager or participating broker-dealers in an aggregate amount that 
is reasonable in relation to the gross proceeds raised in our offering and which are supported by detailed, itemized 
invoices. None of the reimbursements referred to above will exceed actual expenses incurred by our Adviser, its 
members or affiliates. Our Adviser will reimburse to us, without recourse or reimbursement by us, any 
organizational and offering expenses to the extent those expenses, when aggregated with sales load, exceed 15.0%. 

Expense Reimbursement Agreement 

On March 27, 2014, we and our Adviser agreed to an Expense Support and Conditional Reimbursement 
Agreement, or the Expense Reimbursement Agreement. The Expense Reimbursement Agreement was amended and 
restated effective November 17, 2014.  Under the Expense Reimbursement Agreement, as amended, our Adviser, in 
consultation with the Company, will pay up to 100% of both our organizational and offering expenses and our 
operating expenses, all as determined by us and our Adviser. As used in the Expense Reimbursement Agreement, 
operating expenses refer to third party operating costs and expenses incurred by us, as determined under generally 
accepted accounting principles for investment management companies.  Organizational and offering expenses 
include expenses incurred in connection with the organization of our company and expenses incurred in connection 
with our offering, which are recorded as a component of equity.  The Expense Reimbursement Agreement states that 
until the net proceeds to us from our offering are at least $25 million, our Adviser will pay up to 100% of both our 
organizational and offering expenses and our operating expenses.  After we received at least $25 million in net 
proceeds from our offering, our Adviser may, with our consent, continue to make expense support payments to us in 
such amounts as are acceptable to us and our Adviser.  Any expense support payments shall be paid by the Adviser 
to the Company in any combination of cash, and/or offsets against amounts otherwise due from the Company to the 
Adviser. 

Under the Expense Reimbursement Agreement as amended, once we have received at least $25 million in 
net proceeds from our offering, we are required to reimburse our Adviser for any expense support payments we 
received from them occurring within three years of the date on which we incurred such expenses  However, with 
respect to any expense support payments attributable to our operating expenses, (i) we will only reimburse our 
Adviser for expense support payments made by our Adviser to the extent that the payment of such reimbursement 
(together with any other reimbursement paid during such fiscal year) does not cause “other operating expenses” (as 
defined below) (on an annualized basis and net of any expense reimbursement payments received by us during such 
fiscal year) to exceed the percentage of our average net assets attributable to shares of our common stock 
represented by “other operating expenses” during the fiscal year in which such expense support payment from our 
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investments prior to the end of its fiscal quarter. 
 (3) “Annualized Distribution Rate” equals the annualized rate of distributions paid to stockholders based on the

amount of the regular cash distribution paid immediately prior to the date the expense support payment
obligation was incurred by our Adviser. “Annualized Distribution Rate” does not include special cash or stock
distributions paid to stockholders. The Company did not achieve its minimum offering amount until June 25,
2014 and as a result, did not have an opportunity to invest the proceeds from the offering and realize any 
income from investments or pay any distributions to stockholders prior to the end of its fiscal quarter.  

 
Of these Operating Expenses, $47,937 has exceeded the three year period for repayment and will not be 

repayable by the Company. 
 
The chart below, on a cumulative basis, discloses the components of the Reimbursement due from Sponsor 

reflected on the chart above: 

 
 
Operating Expenses are the amounts reimbursed by the Adviser for our operating costs and Offering Costs are the 
cumulative amount of organizational and offering expenses reimbursed to us by the Adviser and subject to future 
reimbursement per the terms of our expense reimbursement agreement.  The following chart summarizes these 
amounts: 
 
Due to related party offset represents the cash the Adviser paid directly for our operating and offering expenses 
and Reimbursements received from sponsor are the amounts the Adviser paid in cash to us for reimbursement of our 
operating and offering costs. 
 

Either we or our Adviser may terminate the Expense Support Agreement at any time, except that if our 
Adviser terminates the agreement, it may not terminate its obligations to provide expense support payments after the 
commencement of any monthly period. If we terminate the Investment Advisory Agreement, we will be required to 
repay our Adviser all expense support payments made by our Adviser within three years of the date of termination. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies  

This discussion of our expected operating plans is based upon our expected financial statements, which will 
be prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP. The 
preparation of these financial statements will require our management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Changes in the economic environment, financial 
markets and any other parameters used in determining such estimates could cause actual results to differ. In addition 
to the discussion below, we will describe our critical accounting policies in the notes to our future financial 
statements.  

Valuation of Investments  

Our board of directors has established procedures for the valuation of our investment portfolio. These 
procedures are detailed below. 

Investments for which market quotations are readily available will be valued at such market quotations. For 
most of our investments, market quotations will not be available. With respect to investments for which market 

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Operating Expenses 1,225,595$       640,597$         391,240$         

Offering Costs 1,854,993         1,060,438        -                       

Due to related party offset (2,512,824)        (1,105,341)       -                       

Reimbursements received from Adviser (342,715)           (342,715)          -                       

Other amounts due to affiliates 448                   -                       -                       

Total Reimbursement due from Adviser 225,497$          252,979$         391,240$         
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assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment 
and considers factors specific to each investment. 

In accordance with ASC Topic 820, the fair value of our investments is defined as the price that we would 
receive upon selling an investment in an orderly transaction to an independent buyer in the principal or most 
advantageous market in which that investment is transacted. 

Revenue Recognition  

We record interest income on an accrual basis to the extent that we expect to collect such amounts. For 
loans and debt securities with contractual PIK interest, which represents contractual interest accrued and added to 
the principal balance, we generally will not accrue PIK interest for accounting purposes if the portfolio company 
valuation indicates that such PIK interest is not collectible. We do not accrue as a receivable interest on loans and 
debt securities for accounting purposes if we have reason to doubt our ability to collect such interest. Original issue 
discounts, market discounts or premiums are accreted or amortized using the effective interest method as interest 
income. We record prepayment premiums on loans and debt securities as interest income. Dividend income, if any, 
is recognized on an accrual basis to the extent that we expect to collect such amount.  

Net Realized Gains or Losses and Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation or Depreciation  

We will measure net realized gains or losses by the difference between the net proceeds from the 
repayment or sale and the amortized cost basis of the investment, without regard to unrealized appreciation or 
depreciation previously recognized, but considering unamortized upfront fees and prepayment penalties. Net change 
in unrealized appreciation or depreciation will reflect the change in portfolio investment values during the reporting 
period, including any reversal of previously recorded unrealized appreciation or depreciation, when gains or losses 
are realized.  

Payment-in-Kind Interest  

We may have investments in our portfolio that contain a PIK interest provision. Any PIK interest will be 
added to the principal balance of such investments and is recorded as income, if the portfolio company valuation 
indicates that such PIK interest is collectible. In order to maintain our status as a RIC, substantially all of this 
income must be paid out to stockholders in the form of dividends, even if we have not collected any cash.  

Organization and Offering Expenses  

The Company has incurred certain expenses in connection with the registration of shares of its common 
stock for sale as discussed in Note 1 – Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 
These costs principally relate to professional fees, fees paid to the SEC and fees paid to the Financial Industry 
Regulatory Authority. These costs were included in deferred offering costs in the accompanying balance sheets. 
Simultaneous with the sale of common shares, the deferred offering costs will be reclassified to stockholders’ equity 
upon the issuance of shares. 

Federal Income Taxes  

We elected to be treated, beginning with our fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, and intend to qualify 
annually thereafter, as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Code.  As a RIC, we generally will not have to pay 
corporate-level federal income taxes on any ordinary income or capital gains that we distribute to our stockholders 
from our tax earnings and profits. To maintain our RIC tax treatment, we must, among other things, meet specified 
source-of-income and asset diversification requirements and distribute annually at least 90% of our ordinary income 
and realized net short-term capital gains in excess of realized net long-term capital losses, if any.  

Recent Developments  

On July 21, 2010, the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). The Dodd-Frank Act institutes a wide range of reforms that will have an 
impact on all financial institutions. Many of the requirements called for in the Dodd-Frank Act will be implemented 
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TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
  

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Affiliate investments, at fair value (amortized cost - $1,859,219 and $0, respectively) 2,097,485$                 -$                               
Non-affiliate investments, at fair value (amortized cost - $3,491,770 and $1,472,094, respectively) 3,431,252                   1,474,307                   
Cash 1,812,341                   1,654,492                   
Receivable for investments sold -                                 249,375                      
Principal and interest receivable 11,707                        900                             
Prepaid expenses 33,606 38,044
Reimbursement due from adviser (see Note 4) 225,497 252,979

TOTAL ASSETS 7,611,888$                 3,670,097$                 

LIABILITIES
Payable for investments purchased -$                               246,250$                    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 225,000 304,643
Stockholder distributions payable 12,478 -                                 
Due to related parties (see Note 4) 47,757 18,300

TOTAL LIABILITIES 285,235 569,193

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (see Note 9)

TEMPORARY EQUITY
Contingently redeemable common shares (see Note 9)

0 and 87,481.04 shares issued and outstanding respectively -                                 1,181,037                   

NET ASSETS
Common stock, $0.001 par value,

75,000,000 shares authorized, 
532,977.79 and 141,933.2 shares issued and outstanding respectively 532 229

Capital in excess of par value 7,172,547 1,899,340
Accumulated undistributed net realized gains 2,192 1,875
Accumulated distributions in excess of net investment income (26,366) 16,211
Accumulated unrealized appreciation on investments 177,748                      (788)                           

TOTAL NET ASSETS 7,326,653                   1,916,867                   

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 7,611,888$                 3,667,097$                 

Net asset value per share of common stock at year end 13.75$                        13.50$                        

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
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TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, 2014 AND 2013 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
  

For the Year Ended 
December 31,

For the Year Ended 
December 31,

For the Year Ended 
December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Operations

Net investment income 140,492$                    16,211$                    79,733$                    
Net realized gain on investments 7,321                          1,875                        -                                
Net increase (decrease) in unrealized appreciation on investments 178,537                      (788)                          -                                

Net increase in net assets resulting from operations 326,350                      17,298                      79,733                      
Stockholder distributions (see Note 5)

Distributions from net investment income (183,073)                    -                                -                                
Distributions from net realized gain on investments (7,002)                        -                                -                                

Net decrease in net assets resulting from stockholder distributions (190,075)                    -                                -                                
Capital share transactions

Issuance of common stock (see Note 3) 4,102,396                   2,897,947                 98,753                      
Less contingently redeemable common stock -                                 (1,181,037)                -                                
Offering costs (9,922)                        (17,344)                     -                                

Net increase in net assets resulting from capital share transactions 4,092,474                   1,699,566                 98,753                      

Total increase in net assets 4,228,749                   1,716,864                 178,486                    
Net assets at beginning of year 1,916,867                   200,003                    21,517                      
Temporary equity reclassified as permanent equity 1,181,037                   -                                -                                
Net assets at end of year 7,326,653$                 1,916,867$               200,003$                  

Accumulated distributions in excess of net investment income (26,366)$                    16,211$                    -$                              

Accumulated undistributed net realized gains 2,192$                        1,875$                      -$                              
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TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
  

Portfolio Company Footnotes Industry Rate
(b) Floor Maturity

Principal 
Amount/ Number 

of Shares

Amortized 

Cost
(f) Fair Value

(c)

Senior Secured Loans—First Lien—32.46%
CareCentrix, Inc. Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals L+5.00% (6.00%) 1.0% 7/8/2021 199,500$              194,849$       194,346$       
Curo Health Services Holdings, Inc. Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals L+5.00% (6.50%) 1.0% 2/7/2022 124,063                122,977         123,054         
FHC Health Systems, Inc. Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals L+4.00% (5.00%) 1.0% 12/23/2021 124,062                123,038         118,479         
Flavors Holdings, Inc. Tranche B Beverage, Food & Tobacco L+5.75% (6.75%) 1.0% 4/7/2020 117,188                113,324         104,297         
GK Holdings, Inc. Business Services L+5.50% (6.50%) 1.0% 1/20/2021 123,750                122,667         122,513         
Global Healthcare Exchange Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals L+4.50% (5.50%) 1.0% 8/15/2022 149,625                149,155         148,784         
Jackson Hewitt Business Services L+7.00% (8.00%) 1.0% 7/30/2020 200,000                196,294         192,500         
Jeld-Wen, Inc. Wholesale Trade-Durable Goods L+4.25% (5.25%) 1.0% 10/15/2021 123,750                122,730         122,874         
Mister Car Wash, Inc. Automotive Repair, Services, and Parking L+4.00% (5.00%) 1.0% 8/20/2021 123,125                122,105         122,458         
Natel Engineering High Tech Industries L+5.75% (6.75%) 1.0% 4/10/2020 121,875                120,758         120,656         
Omnitracs, LLC Transportation: Cargo L+3.75% (4.75%) 1.0% 11/25/2020 123,428                122,688         121,371         
Paradigm Outcomes Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals L+5.00% (6.00%) 1.0% 6/2/2022 124,375                122,605         122,095         
Ranpak Corp. Paper and Allied Products L+3.25% (4.25%) 1.0% 10/1/2021 119,972                119,718         118,972         
SCS Holdings I High Tech Industries L+5.00% (6.00%) 1.0% 10/31/2022 123,596                121,207         121,896         
SITEL Worldwide Business Services L+5.50% (6.50%) 1.0% 9/20/2021 199,500                197,762         196,034         
TIBCO Software High Tech Industries L+5.50% (6.50%) 1.0% 12/4/2020 124,063                121,954         113,052         
Verdesian Life Sciences LLC Wholesale Trade-Nondurable Goods L+5.00% (6.00%) 1.0% 7/1/2020 234,193                232,258         225,996         

Total Senior Secured Loans—First Lien 2,456,065$         2,426,089$ 2,389,377$ 

Senior Secured Loans—Second Lien—14.15%  
Flavors Holdings, Inc. Beverage, Food & Tobacco L+10.00% (11.00%) 1.0% 10/7/2021 125,000                120,893         118,125         
FullBeauty Brands Holding High Tech Industries L+9.00% (10.00%) 1.0% 10/13/2023 250,000                217,634         220,416         
GK Holdings, Inc. Business Services L+9.50% (10.50%) 1.0% 1/21/2022 125,000                122,834         122,500         
Hostess Brands Beverage, Food & Tobacco L+7.50% (8.50%) 1.0% 8/3/2023 250,000                249,048         248,438         
Oxbow Carbon LLC Metals & Mining L+7.00 (8.00%) 1.0% 1/19/2020 250,000                233,925         210,521         
SCS Holdings I High Tech Industries L+9.50% (10.50%) 1.0% 10/13/2023 125,000                121,347         121,875         

Total Senior Secured Loans—Second Lien 1,125,000$         1,065,681$ 1,041,875$ 

Subordinated Convertible Debt—8.27%
Javlin Capital LLC Subordinated Convertible Note (e) Specialty Finance 6.00% 3/31/2020 609,219                609,219         609,219         

Total Subordinated Convertible Debt 609,219$            609,219$     609,219$     

Equity/Other—20.22%
ACON IWP Investors I, L.L.C. (a) Healthcare & Pharmaceuticals 500,000                500,000         738,266         
Javlin Capital LLC Class C-2 Preferred Units (a) (d) (e) Specialty Finance 214,286                750,000         750,000         

Total Equity/Other 714,286              1,250,000$ 1,488,266$ 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS—75.10% 5,350,989$ 5,528,737$ 

OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES—24.90% 1,797,916$ 
NET ASSETS - 100.00% 7,326,653$ 

(a) Affiliated investment as defined by the 1940 Act, whereby the Company owns between 5% and 25% of the portfolio company’s outstanding voting securities and the investments are not classified as controlled investments.

      The aggregate fair value of non-controlled, affiliated investments at December 31, 2015 represented 28.49% of the Company’s net assets. Fair value as of December 31, 2015 along with transactions during the period 

      ended December 31, 2015 in affiliated investments were as follows: 

*Gross additions include increases in the cost basis of investments resulting from new portfolio investments, PIK interest, the amortization of unearned income, the exchange of one or more existing securities for one or more new

 securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company into this category from a different category.

**Gross reductions include decreases in the cost basis of investments resulting from principal collections related to investment repayments or sales, the exchange of one or more existing securities

 for one or more new securities and the movement of an existing portfolio company out of this category into a different category.

(b) Certain variable rate securities in the Company's portfolio bear interest at a rate determined by a publicly disclosed base rate spread. 

      As of December 31, 2015, the three-month London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, was 0.61220%.

(c) Fair value and market value are determined by the Company's board of directors (see Note 7.)

(d) Security held within TPJ Holdings, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.  See Note 2 for a discussion on the basis of consolidation.

(e)  The investment is not a qualifying asset under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. A business development company may not acquire any asset other than a qualifying asset, unless, at the time the acquisition

       is made, qualifying assets represent at least 70% of the business development company’s total assets. As of December 31, 2015, 90.15% of the Company’s total assets represented qualifying assets. 

(f)  See Note 5 for a discussion of the tax cost of the portfolio.

Fair Value at Gross Additions Gross Reductions Fair Value at Net Realized

December 31, 2014 (Cost)* (Cost)** December 31, 2015 Gain (Loss)

ACON IWP Investors I, L.L.C. -$                        500,000$            -$                        738,266$                 -$                    

Javlin Capital, LLC, Convertible Note -                          600,000              -                          609,219                   -                      

Javlin Capital, LLC, C-2 Preferred Units -                          750,000              -                          750,000                   -                      

Total -$                        1,850,000$         -$                        2,097,485$              -$                    

Non-controlled, Affiliated Investments

Year Ended December 31, 2015
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TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION, INC. 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
NOTE 1 – DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 
 
Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, Inc. (the “Company”), incorporated in Maryland on April 29, 2011, is 
publically registered, non-traded fund focused on private equity, structured as a business development company, that 
primarily makes structured equity and debt investments in small to mid-sized private U.S. companies.  Structured 
equity refers to derivative investment products, including convertible notes and warrants, designed to facilitate 
highly customized risk-return objectives Pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company is authorized to 
issue 75,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.001 per share, of which, 37,500,000 shares have 
been classified as Class A Common Stock and 37,500,000 shares have been classified as Class T Common Stock.    
Additionally, the Company is authorized to issue 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001 per 
share.  The Company is offering for sale a maximum of $300,000,000 of shares of common stock on a "best efforts" 
basis pursuant to a registration statement on Form N-2 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Offering").   

 
The Company invests either alone or together with other private equity sponsors. The Company is an externally 
managed, non-diversified closed-end investment company that has elected to be treated as a business development 
company, or BDC, under the Investment Company Act of 1940, or the Company Act.  As a BDC, the Company is 
required to comply with certain regulatory requirements.  The Company has elected to be treated for U.S. federal 
income tax purposes, and intends to annually qualify as a regulated investment company, or RIC, under Subchapter 
M of the Internal Revenue code of 1986, as amended, or the Code.  As of December 31, 2015, the Company has one 
wholly-owned subsidiary through which it holds interest in a non-controlled, affiliated portfolio company.  The 
consolidated financial statements include both the Company’s accounts and the accounts of its wholly-owned 
subsidiary as of December 31, 2015. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. The Company’s consolidated subsidiary is subject to U.S. federal and state income taxes.   
 
Triton Pacific Adviser, LLC ("Adviser") serves as the Investment Adviser and TFA Associates, LLC (“TFA”) 
serves as the Administrator.  Each of these entities are affiliated with Triton Pacific Group, Inc., a private equity 
investment management firm, and its subsidiary Triton Pacific Capital Partners, LLC, a private equity investment 
fund management company, each focused on debt and equity investments for small to mid-sized private companies.  
 
The Adviser was formed in Delaware as a private investment management firm and is registered as an investment 
adviser with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, or the 
Advisers Act. The Adviser oversees the management of the Company’s activities and is responsible for making the 
investment decisions for the portfolio. 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Presentation.  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP.”) These financial statements reflect all adjustments and 
accruals of a normal recurring nature that, in the opinion of management, are necessarily indicative of results 
expected for any future period.   The accompanying financial statements of the Company and related financial 
information have been prepared pursuant to the requirements for reporting on Form 10-K and articles 6 or 10 of 
Regulation S-X.   
 
Management Estimates and Assumptions.  The preparation of unaudited financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities, and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.   
 
Cash.  All cash balances are maintained with high credit quality financial institutions which are members of the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.  The Company maintains cash balances that may exceed federally insured 
limits. 
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Revenue Recognition.  Security transactions are accounted for on the trade date.  The Company records interest 
income on an accrual basis to the extent it expects to collect such amounts.  The Company records dividend income 
on the ex-dividend date.  The Company does not accrue as a receivable interest or dividends on loans and securities 
if it has reason to doubt its ability to collect such income.  Loan origination fees, original issue discount and market 
discount are capitalized and the Company amortizes such amounts as interest income over the respective term of the 
loan or security.  Upon the prepayment of a loan or security, any unamortized loan origination fees and original 
issue discount are recorded as interest income.  Upfront structuring fees are recorded as fee income when earned.  
The Company records prepayment premiums on loans and securities as fee income when it receives such amounts. 
 
Net Realized Gains or Losses, and Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation or Depreciation.  Gains or losses on 
the sale of investments are calculated by using the specific identification method. The Company measures realized 
gains or losses by the difference between the net proceeds from the repayment or sale and the amortized cost basis 
of the investment, without regard to unrealized appreciation or depreciation previously recognized, but considering 
unamortized upfront fees. Net change in unrealized appreciation or depreciation reflects the change in portfolio 
investment values during the reporting period, including any reversal of previously recorded unrealized gains or 
losses when gains or losses are realized.  
 
Capital Gains Incentive Fees. The Company has entered into an investment advisory agreement with the Adviser 
dated as of July 27, 2012.  Pursuant to the terms of the investment advisory agreement, the Incentive Fee shall be 
determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each quarter, upon liquidation of the Company or upon 
termination of this Agreement, as of the termination date, and shall equal 20.0% of the Company’s realized capital 
gains, if any, on a cumulative basis from inception through the end of each quarter, computed net of all realized 
capital losses and unrealized capital depreciation on a cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount of any previously 
paid Incentive Fees.   The fees for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $37,014, of which $1,464 was for 
Incentive Fees calculated on realized gains, and $35,550 for Incentive Fees calculated on unrealized gains. 
 
For purposes of calculating the foregoing: (1) the calculation of the Incentive Fee shall include any capital gains that 
result from cash distributions that are treated as a return of capital; (2) any such return of capital shall be treated as a 
decrease in the Company’s cost basis of an investment; and (3) all fiscal year-end valuations shall be determined by 
the Company in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, applicable provisions of the Company 
Act (even if such valuation is made prior to the date on which the Company has elected to be regulated as a BDC) 
and the Company’s pricing procedures. In determining the Incentive Fee payable to the Adviser, the Company will 
calculate the aggregate realized capital gains, aggregate realized capital losses and aggregate unrealized capital 
depreciation, as applicable, with respect to each of the investments in its portfolio. For this purpose, aggregate 
realized capital gains, if any, will equal the sum of the differences between the net sales price of each investment, 
when sold, and the original cost of such investment since inception. Aggregate realized capital losses will equal the 
sum of the amounts by which the net sales price of each investment, when sold, is less than the cost of such 
investment since inception. Aggregate unrealized capital depreciation will equal the sum of the difference, if 
negative, between the valuation of each investment as of the applicable date and the original cost of such 
investment. At the end of the applicable period, the amount of capital gains that serves as the basis for the 
Company’s calculation of the Incentive Fees will equal the aggregate realized capital gains less aggregate realized 
capital losses and less aggregate unrealized capital depreciation with respect to its portfolio of investments. If this 
number is positive at the end of such period, then the Incentive Fees for such period will be equal to 20% of such 
amount, less the aggregate amount of any Incentive Fees paid in respect of its portfolio in all prior periods. 
 
Offering Costs.  The Company has incurred certain expenses in connection with registering to sell shares of its 
common stock in connection with the Offering.  These costs principally relate to professional and filing fees.  
Simultaneously with selling common shares, the deferred offering costs were and will be charged to stockholders’ 
equity.  The Adviser may reimburse the Company for all or part of these amounts pursuant to the Expense Support 
and Conditional Reimbursement Agreement (“Expense Reimbursement Agreement”) discussed below.  
Substantially all of these costs were paid for by affiliates or the Company and would be owed to the affiliates in the 
event the offering costs were reimbursed.  As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, $1,854,993 and 
$1,225,595, respectively, of offering costs have been reclassified and included as part of the Expense 
Reimbursement Agreement and accordingly included in Reimbursement due from the Adviser.  Of these Operating 
Expenses, $47,937 has exceeded the three year period for repayment and will not be repayable by the Company. 
 



74 

 

The chart below, on a cumulative basis, discloses the components of the Reimbursement due from Sponsor 
reflected on the Statements of Financial Position: 

 
Operating Expenses are the amounts reimbursed or paid by the Adviser for our operating costs and offering costs are 
the cumulative amount of organizational and offering expenses reimbursed to us or paid by the Adviser and subject 
to future reimbursement per the terms of our expense reimbursement agreement.   
 
Due to related party offset represents the cash the Adviser paid directly for our operating and offering expenses 
and reimbursements received from the Adviser are the amounts the Adviser paid in cash to us for reimbursement of 
our operating and offering costs. 
 
The Company compensates the Adviser for investment services per an Investment Adviser Agreement 
(“Agreement”), approved by the Company’s directors, calculated as the sum of (1) base management fee, calculated 
quarterly at 0.5% of the Company’s average gross assets payable quarterly in arrears, and (2) an incentive fee upon 
capital gains determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each quarter or upon liquidation of the Company or 
upon termination of Agreement at 20% of Company’s realized capital gains, as defined.  The Agreement expires 
July 2016 and may continue automatically for successive annual periods, as approved by the Company.  All 
management fees earned by the Adviser prior to January 1, 2014 were waived by the Adviser. 
 
As a BDC, we will be subject to certain regulatory restrictions in making our investments. For example, we 
generally will not be permitted to co-invest alongside our Adviser and its affiliates unless we obtain an exemptive 
order from the SEC or the transaction is otherwise permitted under existing regulatory guidance and we receive 
approval from our independent directors.  As of December 31, 2015, the Company has two affiliate investments in 
ACON IWP Investors I, L.L.C and Javlin Capital, LLC (held by TPJ Holdings, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary). 
 
The Company compensates TFA for administration services per an Administration Agreement for costs and 
expenses incurred with the administration and operation of the Company.  Such agreement expires July 2016 and 
may continue automatically for successive annual periods, as approved by the Company.  These fees have been 
reimbursed from the Adviser pursuant to the Expense Reimbursement Agreement discussed below. 
 
The following table describes the fees and expenses incurred under the investment advisory and administration 
agreement and the dealer manager agreement during the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013: 

 
 

(1) During the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company earned capital gains incentive fees of $37,014, $217 and $0, 
respectively, based on the performance of its portfolio, of which $35,550, ($158) and $0, respectively, was based on unrealized gains, 
and $1,464, $375, and $0, respectively, was based on realized gains.  No capital gains incentive fees are actually payable by the 
Company with respect to unrealized gains unless and until those gains are actually realized. See Note 2 for a discussion of the 
methodology employed by the Company in calculating the capital gains incentive fees. 

(2) During the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company paid the Dealer Manager $398,363, $246,272 and $0, 
respectively, in sales commissions and dealer fees.  $98,817, $19,590, and $0 were retained by TPS, respectively, and the remainder 
re-allowed to third party participating broker dealers. 

 

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Operating Expenses 1,225,595$       640,597$         391,240$         

Offering Costs 1,854,993         1,060,438        -                       

Due to related party offset (2,512,824)        (1,105,341)       -                       

Reimbursements received from Adviser (342,715)           (342,715)          -                       

Other amounts due to affiliates 448                   -                       -                       

Total Reimbursement due from Adviser 225,497$          252,979$         391,240$         

Related Party Source Agreement Description 2015 2014 2013

Triton Pacific Adviser, LLC Investment Adviser Agreement Base Management Fees 101,336$         57,432$           14,935$           

Triton Pacific Adviser, LLC Investment Adviser Agreement Capital Gains Incentive Fees
(1) 37,014$           217$                -$                

TFA Associates, LLC Administration Agreement Administrative Services Expenses 257,576$         147,906$         87,326$           

Triton Pacific Securities, LLC Dealer Manager Agreement Dealer Manager Fees
(2) 98,817$           19,590$           -$                

Year Ended December 31,
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less than the annualized rate of regular cash distributions declared by the Company at the time the Adviser made the 
expense support payment to which such reimbursement relates. “Other operating expenses” means the Company’s 
total operating expenses excluding base management fees, incentive fees, organization and offering expenses, 
financing fees and costs, interest expense, brokerage commissions and extraordinary expenses.    

 

(1) “Operating Expense Ratio” includes all expenses borne by us, except for organizational and offering expenses, base management and 
incentive fees owed to our Adviser, financing fees and costs, interest expense, brokerage commissions and extraordinary expenses.  The 
Company did not achieve its minimum offering amount until June 25, 2014 and as a result, did not invest the proceeds from the offering 
and realize any income from investments prior to the end of its fiscal quarter. 

 (2) “Annualized Distribution Rate” equals the annualized rate of distributions paid to stockholders based on the amount of the regular cash 
distribution paid immediately prior to the date the expense support payment obligation was incurred by our Adviser. “Annualized
Distribution Rate” does not include special cash or stock distributions paid to stockholders. The Company did not achieve its minimum 
offering amount until June 25, 2014 and as a result, did not have an opportunity to invest the proceeds from the offering and realize any
income from investments or pay any distributions to stockholders prior to the end of its fiscal quarter.  

In addition, with respect to any expense support payment attributable to the Company’s organizational and offering 
expenses, the Company will only reimburse the Adviser for expense support payments made by the Adviser to the 
extent that the payment of such reimbursement (together with any other reimbursement for organizational and 
offering expenses paid during such fiscal year) is limited to 15% of cumulative gross sales proceeds from the 
Company’s offering including the sales load (or dealer manager fee) paid by the Company.  

The Company or the Adviser may terminate the Expense Reimbursement Agreement at any time upon thirty days’ 
written notice; however, the Adviser has indicated that it expects to continue such reimbursements until it deems 
that the Company has achieved economies of scale sufficient to ensure that the Company bears a reasonable level of 
expenses in relation to its income.  The Expense Reimbursement Agreement will automatically terminate upon 
termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement or upon the Company’s liquidation or dissolution. 
 
The Expense Reimbursement Agreement is, by its terms, effective retroactively to the Company’s inception date of 
April 29, 2011 for Operating Expenses and from the break of escrow on June 25, 2014 for Offering Expenses.  As of 
December 31, 2015, $3,080,588 has been recorded as Reimbursement due from the Adviser pursuant to the Expense 
Reimbursement Agreement.  Of this, $2,512,824 representing an amount due to the Adviser, was netted against the 
Reimbursement due from Adviser and $342,715 was paid to the Company by the Adviser.   
 
NOTE 5 – DISTRIBUTIONS 
 
The following table reflects the cash distributions per share that the Company declared and paid on its common 
stock through December 31, 2015: 
 

Qu a rte r En d e d   
Amount of Expe nse  
Pa yme nt Obliga tion

Amount of Offe ring Cost 
Pa yment Obliga tion   

Opera ting Expe nse  
Ratio as of the  
Da te  Expe nse  

Pa yment Obliga tion 

Inc urre d ( 1)

Annua lize d Distribution 
Ra te  a s of the  Da te  
Expe nse  Pa yme nt 

Obliga tion Incurre d ( 2 )

Eligible  for 
Re imburse me nt 

Through

September 30, 2012 $21,826 432.69% - September 30, 2015

December 31, 2012 $26,111 531.09% - December 31, 2015

March 31, 2013 $30,819 N/A - March 31, 2016

June 30, 2013 $59,062 N/A - June 30, 2016

September 30, 2013 $65,161 N/A - September 30, 2016

December 31, 2013   $91,378   455.09% - December 31, 2016

March 31, 2014 $68,293 148.96% - March 31, 2017

June 30, 2014 $70,027 $898,518 23.17% - June 30, 2017

September 30, 2014 $92,143 $71,060 20.39% - September 30, 2017

December 31, 2014 $115,777 $90,860 11.15% - December 31, 2017

March 31, 2015 $134,301 $106,217 13.75% 2.01% March 31, 2018

June 30, 2015 $166,549 $167,113 14.10% 3.20% June 30, 2018

September 30, 2015 $147,747 $240,848 10.45% 3.20% September 30, 2018

December 31, 2015 $136,401 $280,376 7.39% 3.60% December 31, 2018



78 

 

 
The Company’s net investment income on a tax basis for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was 
$174,880, $16,211 and $0, respectively.  As of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company had $11,376, 
$18,086 and $0, respectively, of undistributed net investment income and realized gains on a tax basis.   
 
The primary difference between the Company’s GAAP-basis net investment income and its tax-basis net investment 
income is due to the reversal of the required accrual for GAAP purposes of incentive fees on unrealized gains even 
though no such incentive fees on unrealized gains are payable by the Company for the years ended December 31, 
2015, 2014 and 2013. 
 
The following table sets forth reconciliation between GAAP basis net investment income and tax basis net 
investment income for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:  
 

 
 The determination of the tax attributes of the Company’s distributions is made annually as of the end of the 
Company’s fiscal year based upon the Company’s taxable income for the full year and distributions paid for the full 
year. The actual tax characteristics of distributions to stockholders are reported to stockholders annually on Form 
1099-DIV.  

As of December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the components of accumulated earnings on a tax basis were as follows:   

 

The aggregate cost of the Company’s investments for U.S. federal income tax purposes totaled $5,578,844, 
$1,351,838 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The aggregate net 
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments on a tax basis was $(50,635), $(698) and $0 as of December 
31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

  

  

Distribution

Source of Distribution Amount Percentage

Offering proceeds   -$                           -                      

Borrowings   -                             -                      

Net investment income (prior to expense reimbursement)
(1)   -                             -                      

Short-term capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets   7,002                          4%

Long-term capital gains proceeds from the sale of assets   -                             -                      

Expense reimbursement from sponsor   183,073                      96%
Total   190,075$                    100%

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2015, 90.9% of the Company’s gross investment income 
was attributable to cash income earned, and 9.1% was attributable to non-cash accretion of
discount and paid-in-kind interest.

2015

  

2015

GAAP basis net investment income $ 140,492   $ 16,211             $ 79,733             
Reversal of incentive fee accrual on unrealized gains 35,550   -                      -                      
Timing difference -                        -                      (79,733)           
Other book-tax differences (1,162)             -                      -                      
Tax-basis net investment income $ 174,880   $ 16,211             $ -                      

2014 2013
Year Ended December 31,

2015

Distributable realized gains (long-term capital gains) $ 2,192               $ 1,875               $ -                      
Distributable ordinary income (income and short-term capital gains) 9,184                 16,211             -                      
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments 177,748             (788)                -                      
Total $ 189,124   $ 17,298             $ -                      

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013
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Level 2: Inputs that are quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.  
Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable for an asset or liability.  

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement.  

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s investments were categorized as follows in the fair value 
hierarchy (there were no investments for the year ended December 31, 2013): 

 
The Company’s investments as of December 31, 2015 consisted of debt securities that are traded on a private over-
the-counter market for institutional investors, a subordinated convertible note and two equity investments.  The 
Company valued its debt investments by using the midpoint of the prevailing bid and ask prices from dealers on the 
date of the relevant period end, which were provided by independent third-party pricing services and screened for 
validity by such services.  The determination of fair market value for the equity positions and subordinated 
convertible loan were determined by considering, among other factors, various income scenarios and multiples of 
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, cash flows, net income, revenues and 
market comparables, book value multiples, economic profits and portfolio multiples. 

The Company may periodically benchmark the bid and ask prices it receives from the third-party pricing services 
against the actual prices at which the Company purchases and sells its investments. Based on the results of the 
benchmark analysis and the experience of the Company’s management in purchasing and selling these investments, 
the Company believes that these prices are reliable indicators of fair value. However, because of the private nature 
of this marketplace (meaning actual transactions are not publicly reported), the Company believes that these 
valuation inputs are classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. The Company’s board of directors 
reviewed and approved the valuation determinations made with respect to these investments in a manner consistent 
with the Company’s valuation process.  
  
The following is a reconciliation for the year ended December 31, 2015 of investments for which significant 
unobservable inputs (Level 3) were used in determining fair value:   
 

 

The following is a reconciliation for the year ended December 31, 2014 of investments for which significant 
unobservable inputs (Level 3) were used in determining fair value (there were no investments for the year ended 
December 31, 2013):   

Level 1—Price quotations in active markets   $                               -  $                           - 

Level 2—Significant other observable inputs                                 -                           - 

Level 3—Significant unobservable inputs                   5,528,737             1,471,307 

Total   $ 5,528,737   $ 1,471,307            

December 31, 2014Valuation Inputs
  

December 31, 2015

Fair value at beginning of period $            1,351,932 $               119,375 $                          - $                      - $             1,471,307 
Accretion of discount (amortization of premium)                   4,185                   2,389                          -                      -                    6,574 
Net realized gain (loss)                   7,321                          -                          -                      -                    7,321 
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)               (36,715)               (23,014)                          -           238,266                178,537 
Purchases 1,477,625               943,125               600,000        1,250,000             4,270,750 
Paid-in-kind interest                          -                          -                   9,219                      -                    9,219 
Sales and redemptions             (414,971)                          -                          -                      -               (414,971)
Net transfers in or out of Level 3                          -                          -                          -                      -                           - 

Fair value at end of period $            2,389,377 $            1,041,875 $               609,219 $        1,488,266 $             5,528,737 

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included in 
changes in net assets attributable to the change in unrealized gains 
or losses relating to investments still held at the reporting date $               (36,715) $               (23,014) $                          - $           238,266 $                178,537 

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Senior  Secured 
Loans - First Lien

Senior  Secured 
Loans - Second 

Lien

Subordinated 
Convertible 

Debt
Equity/Other

Total
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(1) The per share data was derived by using the weighted average shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
  

(2) The amount shown for a share outstanding throughout the year may not agree with the change in the aggregate gains and losses in portfolio
securities for the year because of the timing of sales of the Company’s shares in relation to fluctuating market values for the portfolio. 

(3) The per share data for distributions reflects the actual amount of distributions paid per share during the applicable period.   
  

(4) The issuance of common stock on a per share basis reflects the incremental net asset value changes as a result of the issuance of shares of 
common stock in the Company’s continuous public offering and pursuant to the Company’s distribution reinvestment plan. The issuance of 
common stock at an offering price, net of sales commissions and dealer manager fees, that is greater than the net asset value per share results 
in an increase in net asset value per share. 

(5) The total return for each period presented was calculated by taking the net asset value per share as of the end of the applicable period, adding 
the cash distributions per share which were declared during the applicable calendar year and dividing the total by the net asset value per share 
at the beginning of the applicable year. The total return does not consider the effect of the sales load from the sale of the Company’s common 
stock. The total return includes the effect of the issuance of shares at a net offering price that is greater than net asset value per share, which 
causes an increase in net asset value per share. The historical calculation of total return in the table should not be considered a representation 
of the Company’s future total return, which may be greater or less than the return shown in the table due to a number of factors, including the 
Company’s ability or inability to make investments in companies that meet its investment criteria, the interest rate payable on the debt
securities the Company acquires, the level of the Company’s expenses, variations in and the timing of the recognition of realized and 
unrealized gains or losses, the degree to which the Company encounters competition in its markets and general economic conditions. As a
result of these factors, results for any previous period should not be relied upon as being indicative of performance in future periods. The 
total return calculations set forth above represent the total return on the Company’s investment portfolio during the applicable period and are
calculated in accordance with GAAP. These return figures do not represent an actual return to stockholders. 

(6) Average net assets in these calculations are exclusive of amounts classified as temporary equity. 
  

 
NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Company enters into contracts that contain a variety of indemnification provisions.  The Company’s maximum 
exposure under these arrangements is unknown; however, the Company has not had prior claims or losses pursuant 

  
Year Ended 

December 31, 2014

Per Share Data:   
Net asset value, beginning of period   $                        13.50 $ 13.50                         

Results of operations
(1)   

Net investment income (loss)                            0.41 0.14                           

Net realized and unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments
(2)                            0.41 0.01                           

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations                            0.82 0.15                           

Stockholder distributions
(3)   

Distributions from net investment income   (0.55)                       -                             

Distributions from net realized gain on investments   (0.02)                       -                             

Net decrease in net assets resulting from stockholder distributions   (0.57)                       -                             

Capital share transactions   

Issuance of common stock
(4)   0.03                         -                             

Offering costs
(1)                           (0.03) (0.15)                          

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from capital share transactions                                -   (0.15)                          
Net asset value, end of period   $                        13.75 $                           13.50 

Shares outstanding, end of period   532,978 229,474

Total return
(5)   6.1% 0.0%

Ratio/Supplemental Data:   

Net assets, end of period   $ 7,326,653 $ 1,916,867

Ratio of net investment income to average net assets
(6)   3.0% 1.5%

Ratio of total operating expenses to average net assets
(6)   13.4% 23.6%

Ratio of expenses reimbursed by sponsor to average net assets
(6)   13.4% 23.6%

Ratio of expense recoupment payable to sponsor to average net assets
(6)   0.0% 0.0%

Ratio of capital gain incentive fee to average net assets
(6) 0.80% 0.02%

Ratio of net operating expenses to average net assets
(6)   0.0% 0.0%

Portfolio turnover   14.3% 23.6%

Year Ended 
December 31, 2015
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Investment income   $ 73,323   $ 41,591   $ 32,598   $ 28,530         

Operating expenses   

Total operating expenses            171,951   147,747   166,549   134,301

Expense reimbursement from sponsor          (136,401)          (147,747)         (166,549)         (134,301)

Net operating expenses              35,550                     -                       -                      -  

Net investment income   37,773           41,591             32,598             28,530 

Realized gain on investments                     -     -                      3,779           3,542           

Net increase (decrease) in unrealized appreciation on investments   167,619   (9,767)             (6,384)          27,069         

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations   $ 205,392   $ 31,824   $           29,993   $          59,141 

Per share information-basic and diluted   

Net investment income (loss) - Basic and diluted   $ 0.08                $ 0.11                $ 0.11             $ 0.12             

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations - Basic and diluted   $ 0.31                $ (0.02)               $ (0.01)              $ 0.13             

Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic   465,967   363,214   289,359   235,886

Weighted average shares outstanding - Diluted 465,967 363,214 289,359 235,886

  

Investment income   $ 16,226   $ 55   $ 38   $ -                   

Operating expenses   

Total operating expenses            (26,957)   106,112   86,041   84,269

Expense reimbursement from sponsor              26,972          (106,057)           (86,003)           (84,269)

Net operating expenses                     15                     55                    38                    -  

Net investment income   16,211                    -                       -                       - 

Realized and unrealized gain (loss)   1,087   -                      -                   -                   

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations   $ 17,298   $ -                      $ -                     $ -                   

Per share information-basic and diluted   

Net investment income (loss) - Basic and diluted   $                0.14   $ -                      $ -                   $ -                   

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations - Basic and diluted   $                0.15   $ -                      $ -                     $ -                   

Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic   114,991   203,189   23,511   14,815

Weighted average shares outstanding - Diluted 114,991 203,189 23,511 47,376

  

Investment income   $ -                      $ -                      $ -                     $ -                   

Operating expenses   

Total operating expenses            107,274   81,058             74,959            48,216 

Less: Expense reimbursement from sponsor   391,240 —  

Net operating expenses          (283,966)   81,058             74,959            48,216 

Net investment income (loss)            283,966          (81,058)         (74,959)         (48,216)

Realized and unrealized gain (loss)   —    —    —    —  

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations   $ 283,966   $          (81,058)   $         (74,959)   $         (48,216)

Per share information-basic and diluted   

Net investment income (loss) - Basic   $ 7.47   $              (6.33)   $             (9.99) $             (6.43)

Net investment income (loss) - Diluted $ 6.81 $              (6.33) $             (9.99) $             (6.43)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations - Basic   $ 7.47   $              (6.33)   $             (9.99)   $             (6.43)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting from operations - Diluted $ 6.81   $              (6.33)   $             (9.99)   $             (6.43)

Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic   10,675   12,805   7,500   7,500

Weighted average shares outstanding - Diluted 11,713 12,805 7,500 7,500

Quarter Ended

  
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

2015 2015 2015 2015

Quarter Ended

Quarter Ended

  
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

2014 2014 2014 2014

  
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,

2013 2013 2013 2013
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable. 
  
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
 

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be 
disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 
time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to 
our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely 
decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, 
management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide 
only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its 
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. 

 
As required by Exchange Act Rule 13(a)-15(b), we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and 

with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, of the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2015. Based 
on the foregoing, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and 
procedures were (a) designed to ensure that the information we are required to disclose in our reports under the 
Exchange Act is recorded, processed and reported in an accurate manner and on a timely basis and the information 
that we are required to disclose in our Exchange Act reports is accumulated and communicated to management to 
permit timely decisions with respect to required disclosure and (b) operating in an effective manner. 

 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting. As defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f), internal control over financial reporting is a 
process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, 
or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other 
personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with GAAP. 

 
Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 

 
1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

Company’s transactions and the dispositions of assets of the Company; 
 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and board of 
directors; and 

 
3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use 

or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation and may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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PART IV 

Item 15.    Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 
  
a.     The following financial statements are filed as part of this report in Part II, Item 8:       
          Page   
     Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   63    
     Statement of Financial Position   64    
     Statements of Operations   65    
  Statements of Changes in Net Assets  66  
     Statements of Cash Flows   67    
  Schedule of Investments  68  
     Notes to Financial Statements   70    

b.     The following exhibits are filed or incorporated as part of this report.    

  3.1 

    

Fourth Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Triton Pacific Investment Corporation. (Incorporated 
by reference to the Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-174873) filed on 
November 1, 2013.) 

   

  3.2 
    

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 
registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-174873) filed on March 15, 2013.) 

   

    
3.3 

 
Articles Supplementary of the Company.  (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Pre-Effective 
amendment no. 1 to registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-206730) filed on March 3, 2016.) 

 

10.1 

    

Dealer Manager Agreement by and between Company and Triton Pacific Securities, LLC. (Incorporated 
by reference to the Company’s Pre-Effective amendment no. 1 to registration statement on Form N-2 
(File No. 333-206730) filed on March 3, 2016.) 

    

10.2 

    

Form of Participating Dealer Agreement and Participating Dealer Agreement. (Incorporated by reference 
to the Company’s Pre-Effective amendment no. 1 to registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-
206730) filed on March 3, 2016.) 

   

10.3 

    

License Agreement by and between Company and Triton Pacific Group, Inc. (Incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 2(K) filed with Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s registration statement on 
Form N-2 (File No. 333-174873) filed on June 14, 2011.) 

    

10.4 

    

Administration Agreement by and between the Company and TFA Associates, LLC. (Incorporated by 
reference, Exhibit 2(K), filed with Pre-Effective Amendment No. 4 to the Company’s registration 
statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-174873) filed on August 12, 2012.) 

    

10.5 

    

Investment Advisory Agreement by and between Company and Triton Pacific Adviser, 
LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2(g), filed with Post-Effective Amendment No.6 to the 
Company’s registration statement on Form N-2 (File No. 333-174873) filed on July 8, 2013.) 

   

10.6 
 

Investment Sub-Advisory Agreement dated July 24, 2014 between the Company and ZAIS Group, LLC 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 30, 2014.)

   
10.7 

 

Amended and Restated Expense Support and Conditional Reimbursement Agreement by and between the 
Company and Adviser (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2014, filed with the SEC on November 19, 2014) 

   
10.8 

 

Fund Services Agreement dated May 27, 2014 between the Company and Gemini Fund Services, LLC 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 29, 
2014). 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 31st day 
of March 2016. 
  

TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION, INC. 

By:   /s/    Craig J. Faggen         
   CRAIG J. FAGGEN 
   Chief Executive Officer 
   (Principal Executive Officer) 

By:   /s/    Michael L. Carroll         
   MICHAEL L. CARROLL 
   Chief Financial Officer 
   (Principal Financial Officer) 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
  

Signature   Title   Date 

/s/    Craig J. Faggen         
Craig J. Faggen   

Director and Chairman of the Board and CEO 
  

March 30, 2016

/s/    Ivan Faggen 
Ivan Faggen   

Director 
  

March 30, 2016

/s/    Ronald Ruther         
Ronald Ruther   

Independent Director 
  

March 30, 2016

/s/    William Pruitt         
William Pruitt   

Independent Director 
  

March 30, 2016

/s/    Marshall Goldberg         
Marshall Goldberg   

Independent Director 
  

March 30, 2016
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Exhibit 31.2  

Certification of Chief Financial Officer  
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a)  

I, Michael L. Carroll, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:  

1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, Inc. (the 
“Company”);  

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, 
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as 
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;  

4) The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure 
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)) for the Company and have:  

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Company, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared;  

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles;  

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and  

d) disclosed in this report any change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting; and  

5) The Company’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of 
internal control over financial reporting, to the Company’s auditors and the audit committee of the Company’s board 
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over 
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and  

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant 
role in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

Date: March 30, 2016 

/s/ Michael L. Carroll 
Michael L. Carroll 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 
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Triton Pacific Investment Corporation 

Proxy Letter 



 

 
6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90045 

April 19, 2016 

Dear Fellow Stockholder: 

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Triton Pacific Investment 
Corporation, Inc. (the “Company”) to be held on Friday, May 27, 2016 at 10:00 a.m., Pacific Time, at the offices of 
the Company located at 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045. 

The Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement accompanying this letter provide an 
outline of the business to be conducted at the meeting. At the meeting, you will be asked to elect the directors of the 
Company as well as consider other matters described in the proxy statement.  I will also report on the progress of the 
Company during the past year and respond to stockholders’ questions. 

It is important that your shares be represented at the annual meeting. If you are unable to attend the meeting in 
person, I urge you to complete, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and promptly return it in the envelope 
provided.  Your vote and participation in the governance of the Company is very important to us. 
  

 
Sincerely yours, 
  

 
Craig Faggen 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
  



TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION INC. 

6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90045 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
To Be Held On May 27, 2016 

To the Stockholders of Triton Pacific Investment Corporation: 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Triton Pacific Investment 
Corporation, a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), will be held at the offices of the Company located at 6701 
Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045, on Friday, May 27, 2016 at 10:00 a.m., Pacific Time (the 
“Annual Meeting”), for the following purposes: 
  

  
1. To elect five members of the board of directors of the Company to serve until the 2017 annual meeting of 

stockholders and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 
   

 
2. To ratify the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm 

for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. 
   

  
3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting, and any adjournments 

or postponements thereof. 

The board of directors has fixed the close of business on April 14, 2016 as the record date for the 
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting and any adjournments or 
postponements thereof.   

The Company has enclosed a copy of the proxy statement, the proxy card and a copy of the Company’s 
annual report to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “Annual Report”).  If you plan on 
attending the Annual Meeting and voting your shares in person, you will need to bring photo identification in 
order to be admitted to the Annual Meeting. To obtain directions to the Annual Meeting, please call the 
Company at (804) 893-3712.  

 

 
  

 
By Order of the Board of Directors, 
 

 

Michael L. Carroll 
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary 

April 19, 2016 

Stockholders are requested to execute and return promptly the accompanying proxy card, which is 
being solicited by the board of directors of the Company. You may execute the proxy card using the methods 
described in the proxy card. Executing the proxy card is important to ensure a quorum at the Annual 
Meeting. Proxies may be revoked at any time before they are exercised by submitting a written notice of 
revocation or a subsequently executed proxy, or by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. 
  



TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION INC. 

6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90045 

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
To Be Held On May 27, 2016 

PROXY STATEMENT 

GENERAL 

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the board of directors (the 
“Board”) of Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), for use at the Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held at 10:00 a.m., Pacific Time, on Friday, May 27, 2016, at the 
offices of the Company located at 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045, and any 
adjournments or postponements thereof (the “Annual Meeting”). This Proxy Statement and the accompanying 
materials are first being mailed to stockholders of record described below on or about April 20, 2016. 

 
All properly executed proxies representing shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the 

Company (the “Shares”) received prior to the Annual Meeting will be voted in accordance with the instructions 
marked thereon. If no specification is made, the Shares covered by the proxy card will be voted FOR the 
proposal to elect each of the director nominees and FOR ratification of the appointment of FGMK, LLC as 
the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. 
Any stockholder who has given a proxy has the right to revoke it at any time prior to its exercise. Stockholders who 
execute proxies may revoke them with respect to a proposal by submitting a letter of revocation or a later-dated 
proxy to the Company at the above address prior to the date of the Annual Meeting or by attending the Annual 
Meeting and voting his or her Shares in person. 

 
Stockholders of record (i.e., stockholders who hold Shares directly in their own names) who attend the 

Meeting may vote in person whether or not he or she has previously voted his or her shares.  Stockholders who hold 
their shares in an account with a broker, bank or other institution or nominee (“Broker Shares”), may vote such 
shares at the Meeting only after obtaining proper written authority from their institution or nominee and present that 
authority at the Meeting. 

 
Quorum 
 

The presence in person or by proxy of the holders of stock of the Company entitled to cast one third of the 
votes entitled to be cast at the meeting (without regard to class) shall constitute a quorum at the Annual Meeting.  
Abstentions will be treated as shares present for quorum purposes. Shares for which brokers have not received 
voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the shares and do not have discretionary authority to vote the shares 
on certain proposals (which are considered “Broker Non-Votes” with respect to such proposals) will be treated as 
shares present for quorum purposes. However, abstentions and Broker Non-Votes are not counted as votes cast.  If a 
quorum is not present at the Meeting, the stockholders who are represented may adjourn the Meeting until a quorum 
is present. The persons named as proxies will vote those proxies for such adjournment, unless the proxies are 
marked to be voted against any proposal for which an adjournment is sought, to permit the further solicitation of 
proxies. 

 
Record Date 

The Board has fixed the close of business on April 14, 2016 as the record date (the “Record Date”) for the 
determination of stockholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting and all adjournments or 
postponements thereof. As of the Record Date, there were 718,145.23 shares of our common stock outstanding 
which were held by 262 record holders.  

 
 
 



Required Vote 
 

Election of Director Nominees. Each director shall be elected by a plurality of all the votes cast at the Annual 
Meeting in person or by proxy, provided that a quorum is present. Stockholders may not cumulate their votes.  
Abstentions will not be included in determining the number of votes cast and, as a result, will have no effect on this 
proposal.  Any shares not voted (whether by abstention, broker non-vote or otherwise) or voted against a nominee 
will have no impact on the election of directors, except to the extent that the failure to vote for an individual results 
in another individual receiving a larger proportion of votes.  Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, 
brokers do not have discretionary authority to vote for the election of directors.  As a result, absent specific voting 
instructions from the beneficial owner of the Shares, brokers will not be permitted to vote Shares for the election of 
directors.  

 
Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. The affirmative vote of a majority of the 

votes cast at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy, provided that a quorum is present, is required to ratify the 
appointment of FGMK, LLC to serve as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2016 
fiscal year.  Abstentions will not be included in determining the number of votes cast and, as a result, will not have 
any effect on the result of the vote. Because brokers will have discretionary authority to vote for the ratification of 
the appointment of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, in the event that they do not 
receive voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the Shares, brokers will be permitted to vote Shares for this 
proposal. 

 
Voting 
 

You may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or by proxy in accordance with the instructions provided 
below.   Stockholders of the Company are entitled to one vote for each Share held as of the Record Date. 

When voting by proxy and mailing your proxy card, you are required to: 
  
  •   indicate your instructions on the proxy card; 
  
  •   date and sign the proxy card; 
  

  
•   mail the proxy card promptly in the envelope provided, which requires no postage if mailed in the United 

States; and 
  

  
•   allow sufficient time for the proxy card to be received on or before 10:00 a.m., Pacific Time, on May 27, 

2016. 
  

The Company has enclosed a copy of this proxy statement, proxy card and a copy of the Company’s 
annual report to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “Annual Report”). If you plan on 
attending the Annual Meeting and voting your Shares in person, you will need to bring photo identification in 
order to be admitted to the Annual Meeting. To obtain directions to the Annual Meeting, please call the 
Company at (804) 893-3712. 

Other Information Regarding This Solicitation 

The Company will bear the expense of the solicitation of proxies for the Annual Meeting, including the cost of 
preparing, printing and mailing this proxy statement, the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, 
and the proxy card. The Company has requested that brokers, nominees, fiduciaries and other persons holding 
Shares in their names, or in the name of their nominees, which are beneficially owned by others, forward the proxy 
materials to, and obtain proxies from, such beneficial owners. The Company will reimburse such persons for their 
reasonable expenses in so doing. 

In addition to the solicitation of proxies by the use of the mail, proxies may be solicited in person and/or by 
telephone or facsimile transmission by directors, officers or employees of the Company and/or officers or employees 
of Triton Pacific Adviser, LLC (the “Adviser”), the Company’s investment adviser. The Adviser is located at 6701 



Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045. No additional compensation will be paid to directors, 
officers or regular employees of the Company or the Adviser for such services. 
  
Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners 
 

The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, the beneficial ownership of the nominees for director, 
the Company’s executive officers, each person known to the Company to beneficially own 5% or more of the 
outstanding Shares, and all of the Company’s executive officers and directors as a group.  

 
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and includes voting or investment 

power with respect to the securities. There are no Shares subject to options that are currently exercisable or 
exercisable within 60 days of April 14, 2016.  

       

 
Shares Beneficially Owned 

as of April 14, 2016 

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner 
Number of 
Shares(1)   Percentage(2)

5% Stockholders  
  
None  
  
Interested Directors:(3)  
Craig Faggen               15,014.68(4)   0.0217%
Ivan Faggen  --   --
     
Independent Directors:(3)  --   --
Ronald W. Ruther  --   --
Marshall Goldberg  --   --
William Pruitt     
     
Executive Officers(3) 

Michael L. Carroll  --   --
     
All executive officers and directors as a group (6 persons)  15,014.68   0.0217%
     
     
(1) Beneficial ownership has been determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Assumes no other purchases or sales of our common stock since the most
recently available SEC filings. This assumption has been made under the rules and regulations of the SEC and
does not reflect any knowledge that we have with respect to the present intent of the beneficial owners of our 
common stock listed in this table. 

  
(2) Based on a total of 718,145.23 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding as of April 14, 2016. 
  
(3) Address is c/o Triton Pacific Capital Partners, LLC, 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90045. 
  
(4) The Company issued 14,815 shares of its common stock to Triton Pacific Adviser in exchange for gross proceeds 

of $200,003 and has received 747.545 shares through the Dividend Reinvestment Program.    
 

 
 
 



Set forth below is the dollar range of equity securities beneficially owned by each of our directors as of the Record 
Date. We are not part of a “family of investment companies,” as that term is defined in the Investment 1940 Act of 
1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”).  

 
 

Name of Director  

Dollar Range of Equity 
Securities Beneficially 
Owned(1)(2) 

Interested Directors           

Craig Faggen   Over $100,000 (3)  

Ivan Faggen   None  

Independent Directors           

Ronald W. Ruther  None  

Marshall Goldberg   None  

William Pruitt None  

 

 (1) The dollar ranges are: None, $1 – $10,000, $10,001 – $50,000, $50,001 – $100,000, or over $100,000.  

 (2) The dollar range of equity securities beneficially owned in the Company as of the Record Date.  Beneficial 
ownership has been determined in accordance with Rule 16a-1(a)(2) of the Exchange Act.  

 (3) The value of equity securities beneficially owned in the Company as of April 14, 2016. 

 
PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

At the Annual Meeting, stockholders are being asked to consider the election of the current directors of the 
Company. Pursuant to the Company’s charter documents, the number of directors on the Board may not be fewer 
than three (except for a period of up to 60 days after the death, removal or resignation of a director pending the 
election of such director’s successor) or greater than eleven. Directors of the Company are elected annually for a 
term of one year, and serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors are duly elected 
and qualified. The Board is currently comprised of five directors. 

Each director named below has been nominated for election by the Board, has agreed to serve as a director if 
elected and has consented to being named as a nominee. No person being nominated as a director is being proposed 
for election pursuant to any agreement or understanding between such person and the Company. 

A stockholder can vote for, or withhold his or her vote from, any or all of the director nominees. In the 
absence of instructions to the contrary, it is the intention of the persons named as proxies to vote such proxy 
FOR the election of each of the director nominees named below. If any of the director nominees should 
decline or be unable to serve as a director, it is intended that the proxy will be voted for the election of such 
person or persons as are nominated as replacements. The Board has no reason to believe that any of the persons 
named will be unable or unwilling to serve. 
 
Information about the Board and Director Nominees 
 

Our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our board of directors. The responsibilities of the 
board of directors include, among other things, the oversight of our investment activities and financing 
arrangements, quarterly valuations of our assets and corporate governance activities. The board of directors will 
have an audit committee and may establish additional committees from time to time as necessary. Although the 
number of directors may be increased or decreased, a decrease will not shorten the term of any incumbent director. 
Any director may resign at any time or may be removed with or without cause by the stockholders upon the 



affirmative vote of at least a majority of all the votes entitled to be cast at a meeting called for the purpose of the 
proposed removal. The notice of the meeting shall indicate that the purpose, or one of the purposes, of the meeting is 
to determine if a director should be removed. 

 
A vacancy created by an increase in the number of directors or by the death, resignation, removal, adjudicated 

incompetence or other incapacity of a director may be filled only by a vote of a majority of the remaining directors. 
As provided in our charter, nominations of individuals to fill the vacancy of a board seat previously filled by an 
independent director will be made by the remaining independent directors. 

 
Board of Directors and Executive Officers.   
 

Our board of directors consists of five members, a majority of whom are not “interested persons” as defined 
in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act. We refer to these individuals as our independent directors. The Chairman of the 
Board is Craig Faggen, who is an interested director. As is described below under the heading “Audit Committee”, 
our board has an audit committee, consisting of our three independent directors, who will be responsible for assuring 
the proper valuation of our assets and the net asset value of our shares. Our leadership structure is designed to 
provide that we are led by a team with the necessary management experience to guide us, while assuring an 
independent check on management decisions and our financial well-being. 
 
Directors and Executive Officers 
 

Information regarding our board of directors is set forth below. We have divided the directors into two groups—
interested directors and independent directors. The address for each director is c/o Triton Pacific Investment 
Corporation, Inc., 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90045. 

 

Name (Age) Position Held 
Director 

Since 

Expiration 
of Current 

Term 
Principal Occupation Past 5 

Years 
     
Interested Directors     
Craig J. Faggen (46) Chairman and CEO 2012 2016 Private Equity Professional 
Ivan Faggen (76) Director 2012 2016 Private Equity Professional 
     
     
Independent Directors     
Ronald W. Ruther (80) Director, Audit Comm. 2012 2016 Business Adviser 
Marshall Goldberg (75) Director, Audit Comm. 2012 2016 Directorships 
William Pruitt (75) Director, Audit Comm. 2012 2016 Directorships 
     
Executive Officers     
Michael L. Carroll (40) Chief Financial Officer and 

Secretary -- -- 
Financial Executive 

Biographical Information 
Interested Directors: 

Craig J. Faggen: Mr. Faggen is our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Faggen has over 15 
years of experience developing and implementing strategic initiatives and structuring numerous complex capital 
markets transactions.  For the past five years, Mr. Faggen has served as the co-founder and Chief Executive Officer 
of Triton Pacific, which includes TPCP, and has been actively involved in building its private equity division.  As 
CEO of Triton Pacific, Mr. Faggen has overall firm oversight responsibilities.  Prior to co-founding Triton Pacific, 
he was a founder and a partner in the boutique investment banking firm Triton Pacific Capital, LLC.  There he was 
instrumental in the due diligence, structuring, and closing of several billion dollars of transactions.  Prior to co-
founding Triton Pacific, Mr. Faggen worked in Arthur Andersen’s Capital Markets Group, where he acted as a 



financial advisor to a number of public and private companies on various transactions including IPOs, securitized 
debt transactions, equity private placements, dispositions and M&A related opportunities.  Mr. Faggen received a 
B.A. in Economics from UCLA and a Master’s Degree from MIT. Craig Faggen sits on the board of a number of 
private companies, most of which are portfolio companies of investment funds managed or sponsored by Triton 
Pacific Capital Partners, LLC or its affiliates. Mr. Faggen does not sit on the board of any other public companies.  
Mr. Faggen is the son of one of our directors, Ivan Faggen.  

Ivan Faggen: Mr. Faggen has over 45 years of experience providing strategic advice and executing capital market 
transactions.  He co-founded, with his son Craig Faggen, and is actively involved in the business of Triton Pacific 
and TPCP. For the past five years, he has served as a partner of Triton Pacific and TPCP and has been actively 
involved in their management and operations.  Mr. Faggen spent over 33 years at Arthur Andersen working with 
small and mid-size companies on a variety of strategic, operational, and financial issues.  Prior to his departure, he 
was one of seven Worldwide Directors of Arthur Andersen’s Industry Group.  In that position, he not only built an 
advisory practice with $300 million of annual revenues, but was also instrumental in facilitating hundreds of 
domestic and international transactions. He received a B.S. in Business Administration from Wayne State University 
and is a retired CPA. In addition, he served as Chairman of the Counselors of Real Estate, Chairman of the 
Counselors of Real Estate Foundation and was a member of the advisory board of the Carlyle Group. Ivan Faggen 
sits on the board of a number of private companies, most of which are portfolio companies of investment funds 
managed or sponsored by Triton Pacific Capital Partners, LLC or its affiliates. Mr. Faggen does not sit on the board 
of any other public companies.  

Independent Directors: 

Ronald W. Ruther: For the past five years, Mr. Ruther has served as an independent business advisor to small 
businesses, their owners and a coach to their CEOs.  During the past 20 years, he has served on many boards of 
directors for privately owned companies with annual sales ranging from $10 million to over $150 million.   As a 
Director, Mr. Ruther has served as Chairman of Governance, Audit and Compensation Committees.  Prior to this, 
Mr. Ruther was with Arthur Andersen & Co. for 32 years and took early retirement in 1992.   As a tax partner for 
over 20 years and Head of the Tax Practice in Orange County, California, Mr. Ruther specialized in business 
consulting, mergers and acquisitions, executive compensation, employee benefits and family wealth planning.   His 
clients ranged from start-ups to large public corporations. Mr. Ruther received a B.S. in Business from Northwestern 
University and a J.D. from Northwestern Law School.    He is a retired CPA and member of the Illinois Bar. 

Marshall Goldberg: During the past five years, Mr. Goldberg has served as the chair of a charitable initiative, an 
endowment committee and on the boards of several community and charitable organizations, although Mr. Goldberg 
recently retired from these charitable endeavors.   Prior to that, Mr. Goldberg, served in various capacities in a 
thirty-year career with Prudential Financial Services, Inc.  As Corporate Vice President for Agent Training and 
Manpower Development, he was responsible for agency training for the company’s 35,000 person field force. Mr. 
Goldberg participated as a lead principal in the development and introduction of its Universal Life insurance product 
which soon became the dominant variable life contract in the insurance industry.  As a Regional Marketing Vice 
President, he headed several sales organizations staffed by thousands of agents and field staff.   As Senior Vice 
President of the Prudential Home Mortgage Company, he led a national sales and production organization and 
served on the risk management and enterprise management committees.  Mr. Goldberg received a B.S.B.A. in 
Economics from the University of Florida and acquired several financial services designations.   

William Pruitt: For the past five years, Mr. Pruitt has served as the general manager of Pruitt Enterprises, LP and 
president of Pruitt Ventures, Inc. Previously, Mr. Pruitt served as the managing partner for the Florida, Caribbean 
and Venezuela operations of the independent auditing firm of Arthur Andersen, LLP. Mr. Pruitt has been an 
independent board member of multiple boards, including Swisher Hygiene, Inc., NV5, Inc., MAKO Surgical Corp., 



PBSJ Corporation, and KOS Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Mr. Pruitt received a B.A. in Business Administration from the 
University of Miami and is a CPA. 

Executive Officers (who are not directors): 

Michael Carroll, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary: Mr. Carroll has served as our Chief Financial Officer and 
secretary since inception, and has extensive experience in the area of financial accounting and has spent several 
years at Triton Pacific managing fund finances and investor relations.  Prior to joining Triton Pacific, Mr. Carroll 
managed the business functions and accounts of various political organizations and worked on Capitol Hill.  Prior 
experiences include serving as Deputy Treasurer of Virginians for Jerry Kilgore, a Richmond-based candidate 
committee, where Mr. Carroll managed the committees’ campaign contributions, totaling over $22 million.  Mr. 
Carroll received a B.S. from Virginia Commonwealth University. 

Risk Oversight and Board Structure 

Board Leadership Structure 

The Company’s business and affairs are managed under the direction of the Board. Among other things, the 
Board sets broad policies for the Company and approves the appointment of the Company’s investment advisers, 
administrator and officers. The role of the Board, and of any individual director, is one of oversight and not of 
management of the Company’s day-to-day affairs. 

Under the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, the Board may designate one of the Company’s 
directors as chair to preside over meetings of the Board and meetings of stockholders, and to perform such other 
duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board. Presently, Mr. Craig Faggen holds the dual positions of 
chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is an “interested person” by virtue of his 
employment with the Adviser. The Company believes that it is in the best interests of the Company’s stockholders 
for Mr. Faggen to serve as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board because of his significant experience 
in matters of relevance to the Company’s business. The Board has determined that the composition of the Audit 
Committee (consisting solely of Independent Directors) is an appropriate means to address any potential conflicts of 
interest that may arise from the Chairman’s status as CEO and an interested person of the Company. The Company 
believes that the Board’s flexibility to determine its Chairman and reorganize its leadership structure from time to 
time is in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. 

Each year, the Independent Directors will designate an Independent Director to serve as the lead Independent 
Director on the Board. The designation of a lead Independent Director is for a one-year term and a lead Independent 
Director may be eligible for re-election at the end of that term. If the lead Independent Director is unavailable for a 
meeting, his or her immediate predecessor will serve as lead Independent Director for such meeting. The lead 
Independent Director will preside over meetings of the Company’s Independent Board. The lead Independent 
Director will also serve as a liaison between the Company’s Independent Board and the Company’s management on 
a wide variety of matters, including agenda items for the Board meetings. Designation as such does not impose on 
the lead Independent Director any obligations or standards greater than or different from those of the Company’s 
other directors.  Mr. Ruther currently serves as the Independent Board’s lead Independent Director. 

All of the Independent Directors play an active role on the Board. The Independent Directors compose a 
majority of the Board and are closely involved in all material deliberations related to the Company. The Board 
believes that, with these practices, each Independent Director has an equal involvement in the actions and oversight 
role of the Board and equal accountability to the Company and its stockholders. The Independent Directors are 
expected to meet separately (i) as part of each regular Board meeting and (ii) with the Company’s chief compliance 
officer, as part of at least one Board meeting each year. The Independent Director committee may hold additional 
meetings at the request of the lead Independent Director or another Independent Director. 

The Board believes that its leadership structure—a chair of the Board with the requisite experience, a lead 
independent director, and committees led by independent directors—is the optimal structure for the Company at this 
time because it allows the Company’s directors to exercise informed and independent judgment, and allocates areas 
of responsibility among committees of independent directors and the full Board in a manner that enhances effective 



oversight. The Board is of the opinion that having a majority of independent directors is appropriate and in the best 
interest of the Company’s stockholders, but also believes that having two interested persons serve as directors brings 
both corporate and financial viewpoints that are significant elements in its decision-making process. The Board will 
review its leadership structure periodically as part of its annual self-assessment process and may make changes to it 
at any time, including in response to changes in the characteristics or circumstances of the Company. 
 
Board Role in Risk Oversight 

The Board oversees the Company’s business and operations, including certain risk management functions. 
Risk management is a broad concept comprising many disparate elements (for example, investment risk, issuer and 
counterparty risk, compliance risk, operational risk, and business continuity risk). The Board implements its risk 
oversight function both as a whole and through its committees. In the course of providing oversight, the Board and 
its committees receive reports on the Company’s and the Advisers’ activities, including reports regarding the 
Company’s investment portfolio and financial accounting and reporting. The Board also receives a quarterly report 
from the Company’s chief compliance officer, who reports on the Company’s compliance with the federal and state 
securities laws and the Company’s internal compliance policies and procedures as well as those of the Advisor, the 
managing dealer for the Offering (the “Managing Dealer”), the Company’s administrator and the Company’s 
transfer agent. The Audit Committee’s meetings with the Company’s independent public accounting firm also 
contribute to its oversight of certain internal control risks. In addition, the Board meets periodically with the Adviser 
to receive reports regarding the Company’s operations, including reports on certain investment and operational risks, 
and the Independent Directors are encouraged to communicate directly with senior members of the Company’s 
management. 

The Board believes that this role in risk oversight is appropriate for the Company at this time. The Company 
believes that there are robust internal processes in place and a strong internal control environment to identify and 
manage risks. However, not all risks that may affect the Company can be identified or processes and controls 
developed to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects, and some risks are beyond the control of the 
Company, the Adviser and the Company’s other service providers. 

Meetings of the Board of Directors  

During the fiscal year of 2015, our board of directors held four board meetings and four Audit Committee 
meetings. All directors attended all of the meetings of the board of directors and of the respective committees on which 
they serve. We require each director to make a diligent effort to attend all board and committee meetings as well as 
each annual meeting of our stockholders. 

Committees of the Board of Directors 
 
Audit Committee  
 

Our audit committee is composed wholly of our independent directors. A copy of the charter of our audit 
committee is attached as Appendix A to this proxy statement.  The audit committee is responsible for approving our 
independent accountants, reviewing with our independent accountants the plans and results of the audit engagement, 
approving professional services provided by our independent accountants, reviewing the independence of our 
independent accountants and reviewing the adequacy of our internal accounting controls. The audit committee is 
also responsible for aiding our board of directors in fair value pricing debt and equity securities that are not publicly-
traded or for which current market values are not readily available and for determining the net asset value of our 
shares. The board of directors and audit committee may utilize the services of an independent valuation firm to help 
them determine the fair value of these securities. Messrs. Pruitt, Goldberg and Ruther are the members of our audit 
committee, and Mr. Ruther is the chairman. Our board of directors has determined that Mr. Ruther is an “audit 
committee financial expert” as defined under relevant SEC rules.     

 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee   
 

The board of directors has not yet designated a separate Nominating and Corporate Governance committee.  
Instead, the entire board of directors performs the functions of the Nominating and Corporate Governance 



committee.  The Nominating and Corporate Governance committee does not have a written charter. The board 
(acting as the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee) is responsible for selecting, researching and 
nominating directors for election by our stockholders, selecting nominees to fill vacancies on the board of directors 
or a committee thereof, developing and recommending a set of corporate governance principles and overseeing the 
evaluation of our management.  

 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee seeks candidates who possess the background, skills 

and expertise to make a significant contribution to the board of directors, the Company and its stockholders. In 
considering possible candidates for election as a director, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 
takes into account, in addition to such other factors as it deems relevant, the desirability of selecting directors who:  

 
 are of high character and integrity;  

 
 are accomplished in their respective fields, with superior credentials and recognition; 

 
 have relevant expertise and experience upon which to be able to offer advice and guidance to 

management; 
 

 have sufficient time available to devote to the affairs of the Company; 
 

 are able to work with the other members of the board of directors and contribute to the success of 
the Company; 

 
 can represent the long-term interests of the Company’s stockholders as a whole; and 

 
 are selected such that with the other members of the board of directors represent a range of 

backgrounds and experience. 
 

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has not adopted a formal policy with regard to the 
consideration of diversity in identifying director nominees. In determining whether to recommend a director 
nominee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers and discusses diversity, among other 
factors, with a view toward the needs of the board of directors as a whole. The Nominating and Corporate 
Governance Committee generally conceptualizes diversity expansively to include, without limitation, concepts such 
as race, gender, national origin, differences of viewpoint, professional experience, education, skill and other 
qualities that contribute to the board of directors, when identifying and recommending director nominees. The 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that the inclusion of diversity as one of many factors 
considered in selecting director nominees is consistent with the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s 
goal of creating a board of directors that best serves the needs of the Company and its stockholders. 

 
 
Stockholder Recommendation of Director Candidates to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee  

 
The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by 

stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not intend to alter the manner in which it 
evaluates candidates, including the minimum criteria set forth above, based on whether the candidate was 
recommended by a stockholder or not. Stockholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to become nominees for election to the Board may do so by 
delivering a written recommendation to our secretary at the address set forth on the cover page of this Proxy 
Statement. Recommendations for individuals to be considered for nomination at the 2017 Annual Meeting must be 
received by December 31, 2016. Recommendations received after December 31, 2016 will not be considered for 
nomination at the 2017 Annual Meeting. Submissions must include the full name of the proposed nominee, a 
description of the proposed nominee’s business experience for at least the previous five years, complete biographical 
information, a description of the proposed nominee’s qualifications as a director and a representation that the 
nominating stockholder is a beneficial or record owner of our stock. Any such submission must be accompanied by 
the written consent of the proposed nominee to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director if elected.  



 
Compensation Committee 
 

 Because none of our executive officers are compensated by the Company, the board does not maintain a 
separate Compensation Committee.  Instead, the entire board performs the functions of the Compensation 
Committee.  The Compensation Committee does not have a written charter.  
 
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 
 

During the last fiscal year, the entire Board performed the functions of the Compensation Committee.  None 
of our executive officers has ever served as a director of another entity any of whose executive officers served on 
our Compensation Committee. 
  
Compensation of Directors 

 
On December 15, 2014, the Company entered into an agreement (the “Director Agreement”) with its three 

independent directors, Marshall Goldberg, William Pruitt and Ronald Ruther, whereby the Independent Directors 
agreed to certain revisions to their compensation for serving as members of the Company’s Board.  Specifically, 
effective October 1, 2014, the fees payable to an Independent Director shall be determined based on the Company’s 
net assets as of the end of each fiscal quarter and be paid quarterly in arrears as follows:  

Net Asset Value 
Annual Cash 
Retainer Fee 

Board Meeting 
Fee 

Annual Audit 
Committee 
Chairperson 

Fee 

Annual Audit 
Committee 

Member Fee 

Audit 
Committee 

Meeting Fee 
$0 to $25 million -- -- -- -- -- 
$25 million to $75 million $20,000 $1,000 $10,000 $2,500 $500 
over $75 million $30,000 $1,000 $12,500 $2,500 $500 

 
Executive Compensation 

None of our executive officers will receive direct compensation from us. We do not currently have any 
employees and do not expect to have any employees in the foreseeable future. The services necessary for the 
operation of our business will be provided to us by the officers and the employees of our Adviser and Administrator 
pursuant to the terms of the investment adviser agreement and the administration agreement, respectively. 
 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics  

The Company has adopted a code of business conduct and ethics pursuant to Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act, 
which applies to, among others, its officers, including its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, as 
well as the members of the Board. The Company’s code of business conduct and ethics will be supplied free of 
charge to any requestor by calling the Company at (310) 943-4990. The Company intends to disclose any 
amendments to or waivers of required provisions of the code of business conduct and ethics on Form 8-K, as 
required by the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.  

Communications Between Stockholders and the Board  
 

The Board welcomes communications from the Company’s stockholders. Stockholders may send 
communications to the Board or to any particular director to the following address: c/o Triton Pacific Investment 
Corporation, Inc., 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045. Stockholders should indicate 
clearly the director or directors to whom the communication is being sent so that each communication may be 
forwarded directly to the appropriate director(s).  

 
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
 

The Company has procedures in place for the review, approval and monitoring of transactions involving the 
Company and certain persons related to the Company. For example, the Company has a code of conduct that 



generally prohibits any employee, officer or director from engaging in any transaction where there is a conflict 
between such individual’s personal interest and the interests of the Company. Waivers to the code of conduct for any 
executive officer or member of the Board must be approved by the Board and are publicly disclosed as required by 
applicable law and regulations. In addition, the Audit Committee is required to review and approve all related-party 
transactions (as defined in Item 404 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Exchange Act). Prior to the 
occurrence of a liquidity event, all future transactions with affiliates of the Company will be on terms no less 
favorable than could be obtained from an unaffiliated third party and must be approved by a majority of the Board, 
including a majority of the Independent Directors. 

 
The Company will compensate the Adviser for investment services per an Investment Adviser Agreement 

(“Agreement”), approved by the Independent Directors, calculated as the sum of (1) base management fee, 
calculated quarterly at 0.5% of the Company’s average gross assets payable quarterly in arrears, and (2) an incentive 
fee upon capital gains determined and payable in arrears as of the end of each quarter or upon liquidation of the 
Company or upon termination of Agreement at 20% of Company’s realized capital gains, as defined.  The 
Agreement expires June 2016 and may continue automatically for successive annual periods, as approved by the 
Company.  The Company paid the Adviser $101,336 in base management fees during the year ended December 31, 
2015.  In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company earned capital gains incentive fees of 
$37,014 based on the performance of its portfolio, of which $1,464 was for Incentive Fees calculated on realized 
gains, and $35,550 for Incentive Fees calculated on unrealized gains. No capital gains incentive fees are actually 
payable by the Company with respect to unrealized gains unless and until those gains are actually realized.  All 
management fees earned by the Adviser prior to January 1, 2014 were waived by the Adviser. 

On March 27, 2014, the Company and its Adviser agreed to an Expense Support and Conditional 
Reimbursement Agreement, or the Expense Reimbursement Agreement. The Expense Reimbursement Agreement 
was amended and restated effective November 17, 2014.  Under the Expense Reimbursement Agreement, as 
amended, the Adviser, in consultation with the Company, will pay up to 100% of both the Company’s 
organizational and offering expenses and its operating expenses, all as determined by the Company and the Adviser. 
As used in the Expense Reimbursement Agreement, operating expenses refer to third party operating costs and 
expenses incurred by the Company, as determined under U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) 
for investment management companies.  Organizational and offering expenses include expenses incurred in 
connection with the organization of the Company and expenses incurred in connection with its offering, which are 
recorded as a component of equity.  The Expense Reimbursement Agreement states that until the net proceeds to the 
Company from its offering are at least $25 million, the Adviser will pay up to 100% of both the Company’s 
organizational and offering expenses and its operating expenses.  After the Company receives at least $25 million in 
net proceeds from its offering, the Adviser may, with the Company’s consent, continue to make expense support 
payments to the Company in such amounts as are acceptable to the Company and the Adviser.  Any expense support 
payments shall be paid by the Adviser to the Company in any combination of cash, and/or offsets against amounts 
otherwise due from the Company to the Adviser. 

Under the Expense Reimbursement Agreement as amended, once the Company has received at least $25 
million in net proceeds from its offering, during any quarter occurring within three years of the date on which the 
Company incurred any expenses that are subject to reimbursement, the Company is required to reimburse the 
Adviser for any expense support payments the Company received from them.  However, with respect to any expense 
support payments attributable to the Company’s operating expenses, (i) the Company will only reimburse the 
Adviser for expense support payments made by the Adviser to the extent that the payment of such reimbursement 
(together with any other reimbursement paid during such fiscal year) does not cause “other operating expenses” (as 
defined below) (on an annualized basis and net of any expense reimbursement payments received by the Company 
during such fiscal year) to exceed the percentage of the Company’s average net assets attributable to shares of its 
common stock represented by “other operating expenses” during the fiscal year in which such expense support 
payment from the Adviser was made (provided, however, that this clause (i) shall not apply to any reimbursement 
payment which relates to an expense support payment from the Adviser made during the same fiscal year); and 
(ii) the Company will not reimburse the Adviser for expense support payments made by the Adviser if the 
annualized rate of regular cash distributions declared by the Company at the time of such reimbursement payment is 
less than the annualized rate of regular cash distributions declared by the Company at the time the Adviser made the 
expense support payment to which such reimbursement relates. “Other operating expenses” means the Company’s 



total operating expenses excluding base management fees, incentive fees, organization and offering expenses, 
financing fees and costs, interest expense, brokerage commissions and extraordinary expenses.    

Below is a table that provides information regarding expense support payments incurred by our Adviser pursuant to 
the Expense Support Agreement as well as other information relating to our ability to reimburse our Adviser for 
such payments.  

 

(1) “Operating Expense Ratio” includes all expenses borne by us, except for organizational and offering expenses, 
base management and incentive fees owed to our Adviser, financing fees and costs, interest expense, brokerage 
commissions and extraordinary expenses.  The Company did not achieve its minimum offering amount until 
June 25, 2014 and as a result, did not invest the proceeds from the offering and realize any income from 
investments prior to the end of its fiscal quarter. 

 (2) “Annualized Distribution Rate” equals the annualized rate of distributions paid to stockholders based on the 
amount of the regular cash distribution paid immediately prior to the date the expense support payment 
obligation was incurred by our Adviser. “Annualized Distribution Rate” does not include special cash or stock 
distributions paid to stockholders. The Company did not achieve its minimum offering amount until June 25, 
2014 and as a result, did not have an opportunity to invest the proceeds from the offering and realize any 
income from investments or pay any distributions to stockholders prior to the end of its fiscal quarter.  

Of these Operating Expenses, $47,937 as of December 31, 2015 has exceeded the three year period for 
repayment and will not be repayable by the Company.  

In addition, with respect to any expense support payment attributable to the Company’s organizational and 
offering expenses, the Company will only reimburse the Adviser for expense support payments made by the Adviser 
to the extent that the payment of such reimbursement (together with any other reimbursement for organizational and 
offering expenses paid during such fiscal year) is limited to 15% of cumulative gross sales proceeds from the 
Company’s offering including the sales load (or dealer manager fee) paid by the Company.  

The Company or the Adviser may terminate the Expense Reimbursement Agreement at any time upon 
thirty days’ written notice, however, the Adviser has indicated that it expects to continue such reimbursements until 
it deems that the Company has achieved economies of scale sufficient to ensure that the Company bears a 
reasonable level of expenses in relation to its income.  The Expense Reimbursement Agreement will automatically 
terminate upon termination of the Investment Advisory Agreement or upon the Company’s liquidation or 
dissolution. 

The Expense Reimbursement Agreement is, by its terms, effective retroactively to our inception date of 
April 29, 2011. As a result, our Adviser has agreed to reimburse a total of $3,080,588 as of December 31, 2015, 
which amounts have consisted of offsets against amounts owed by us to our Adviser since our inception.  

Qu a rte r En d e d   
Amount of Expe nse  
Pa yme nt Obliga tion

Amount of Offe ring Cost 
Pa yment Obliga tion   

Opera ting Expe nse  
Ratio as of the  
Da te  Expe nse  

Pa yment Obliga tion 

Inc urre d ( 1)

Annua lize d Distribution 
Ra te  a s of the  Da te  
Expe nse  Pa yme nt 

Obliga tion Incurre d ( 2 )

Eligible  for 
Re imburse me nt 

Through

September 30, 2012 $21,826 432.69% - September 30, 2015

December 31, 2012 $26,111 531.09% - December 31, 2015

March 31, 2013 $30,819 N/A - March 31, 2016

June 30, 2013 $59,062 N/A - June 30, 2016

September 30, 2013 $65,161 N/A - September 30, 2016

December 31, 2013   $91,378   455.09% - December 31, 2016

March 31, 2014 $68,293 148.96% - March 31, 2017

June 30, 2014 $70,027 $898,518 23.17% - June 30, 2017

September 30, 2014 $92,143 $71,060 20.39% - September 30, 2017

December 31, 2014 $115,777 $90,860 11.15% - December 31, 2017

March 31, 2015 $134,301 $106,217 13.75% 2.01% March 31, 2018

June 30, 2015 $166,549 $167,113 14.10% 3.20% June 30, 2018

September 30, 2015 $147,747 $240,848 10.45% 3.20% September 30, 2018

December 31, 2015 $136,401 $280,376 7.39% 3.60% December 31, 2018



The Company compensates TFA Associates, LLC (an affiliate of the Company) for administration services 
per an Administration Agreement for costs and expenses incurred with the administration and operation of the 
Company.  Such agreement expires June 2016 and may continue automatically for successive annual periods, as 
approved by the Company.  During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company paid TFA Associates 
$257,576 in administrative fees. 

The dealer manager for the Company’s public offering is Triton Pacific Securities, LLC, which is one of the 
Company’s affiliates. During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company paid the dealer manager $398,363 in 
sales commissions and dealer fees.  Of this amount, $98,817 was retained by Triton Pacific Securities, and the 
remainder re-allowed to third party participating broker dealers. 

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance 

Pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, the Company’s directors and executive officers, and any 
persons holding more than 10% of its Shares, are required to report their beneficial ownership and any changes 
therein to the SEC and the Company. Specific due dates for those reports have been established, and the Company is 
required to report herein any failure to file such reports by those due dates. Based on the Company’s review of 
Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed by such persons and information provided by the Company’s directors and officers, the 
Company believes that during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, all Section 16(a) filing requirements 
applicable to such persons were timely filed. 

Required Vote 

Each director shall be elected by a plurality of all the votes cast at the Annual Meeting in person or by proxy, 
provided that a quorum is present. Abstentions will not be included in determining the number of votes cast and, as a 
result, will have no effect on this proposal. Shares represented by broker non-votes are not considered entitled to 
vote and thus are not counted for purposes of determining whether the proposal has been approved. 

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” EACH OF THE 
DIRECTOR NOMINEES. 

  
  



PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT 

REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM  

FGMK, LLC, has been appointed to serve as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm 
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.  The Company knows of no direct financial or material indirect 
financial interest of FGMK in the Company. It is expected that a representative of FGMK will be present at the 
Meeting and will have an opportunity to make a statement if he or she chooses and will be available to answer 
questions.  

Fees 

Set forth in the table below are audit fees and non-audit related fees billed to the Company by FGMK for 
professional services performed for the Company’s fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014: 
  
                

Fiscal Year   
Audit 
Fees    

Audit-
Related Fees(1)    Tax Fees(2)   All Other Fees(3) 

 2015  $ 75,671  $ 30,787  $ 8,956                      — 
 2014  $ 59,800  $ 21,892  $ 1,008                      — 
     
(1) “Audit-Related Fees” are those fees billed to the Company by FGMK for assurance and related services by our 

principal accountants that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial 
statements and are not reported under “Audit Fees.” 

  
(2) “Tax Fees” are those fees billed to the Company by FGMK in connection with tax consulting services, 

including primarily the review of the Company’s income tax returns. 
  
(3) “All Other Fees” are those fees billed to the Company by FGMK in connection with permitted non-audit 

services. 
  

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, no non-audit fees were paid to 
FGMK for services rendered to our Adviser and any entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with 
our Adviser that provides ongoing services to the Company. 

The Company’s Audit Committee reviews, negotiates and approves in advance the scope of work, any related 
engagement letter and the fees to be charged by the independent registered public accounting firm for audit services 
and permitted non-audit services for the Company and for permitted non-audit services for the Company’s 
investment adviser and any affiliates thereof that provide services to the Company if such non-audit services have a 
direct impact on the operations or financial reporting of the Company. All of the audit and non-audit services 
described above for which FGMK billed the Company for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee. 
  
Audit Committee Report 

As part of its oversight of the Company’s financial statements, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed 
with both management and FGMK, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, the Company’s 
financial statements filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015. Management advised the Audit 
Committee that all financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP, and reviewed significant 
accounting issues with the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also discussed with FGMK the matters required 
to be discussed by the Public Company Accounting Standards Board AU 380, Communication with Audit 
Committees, as amended. 

The Audit Committee has established a pre-approval policy that describes the permitted audit, audit-related, 
tax, and other services to be provided by FGMK. Pursuant to the policy, the Audit Committee pre-approves the audit 
and non-audit services performed by FGMK in order to assure that the provision of such service does not impair the 
firm’s independence. 



Any requests for audit, audit-related, tax, and other services that have not received general pre-approval must 
be submitted to the Audit Committee for specific pre-approval in accordance with its pre-approval policy, 
irrespective of the amount, and cannot commence until such approval has been granted. Normally, pre-approval is 
provided at regularly scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee. However, the Audit Committee may delegate pre-
approval authority to one or more of its members. The member or members to whom such authority is delegated 
must report any pre-approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee 
does not delegate its responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by FGMK to management. 

The Audit Committee received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from FGMK required by 
applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding FGMK’s communications 
with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed with FGMK its independence. The Audit 
Committee has reviewed the audit fees paid by the Company to FGMK. It has also reviewed non-audit services and 
fees to assure compliance with the Company’s and the Audit Committee’s policies restricting FGMK from 
performing services that might impair its independence. 

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board that 
the audited financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015 be included in the 
Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 for filing with the SEC. The 
Audit Committee also recommended the appointment of FGMK to serve as the independent registered public 
accounting firm of the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016. 
  

 
Audit Committee Members: 
Ronald Ruther, Chairman 
William Pruitt 
Marshall Goldberg 

 

Required Vote  

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the meeting in person or by proxy is required to 
approve this proposal. Unless marked to the contrary, the shares represented by the enclosed proxy card will 
be voted for ratification of the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the independent registered public accounting 
firm of the Company for the year ending December 31, 2016. Because brokers will have discretionary 
authority to vote for the ratification of the selection of the Company’s registered independent public 
accounting firm in the event that they do not receive voting instructions from the beneficial owner of the 
shares, your broker will be permitted to vote your shares for this proposal.  

The material contained in the foregoing Audit Committee Report is not “soliciting material,” is not 
deemed “filed” with the SEC, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under 
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof 
and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.  

THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT YOU VOTE “FOR” RATIFICATION OF 
FGMK, LLC AS THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM OF THE 
COMPANY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2016.  

 
 

SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS 

The Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws require the Company to hold an annual meeting of the 
stockholders for the election of directors and the transaction of any business within the powers of the Company on a 
date and at a time set by the Board. In addition, the Company will hold special meetings as required or deemed 
desirable, or upon the request of holders of at least 10% of the Company’s outstanding Shares entitled to vote. Any 
stockholder that wishes to submit a proposal for consideration at a subsequent meeting of the stockholders should 
mail the proposal promptly to the Secretary of the Company. Any proposal to be considered for submission to 
stockholders must comply with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and must be received by the Company in 



accordance with the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws and any other applicable law, rule, or regulation 
regarding director nominations. When submitting a nomination to the Company for consideration, a stockholder 
must provide certain information that would be required under applicable SEC rules, including the following 
minimum information for each director nominee: full name, age, and address; class, series and number of Shares 
beneficially owned by the nominee, if any; the date such Shares were acquired and the investment intent of such 
acquisition; whether such stockholder believes the individual is an “interested person” of the Company, as defined in 
the 1940 Act; and all other information required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in 
an election contest or is otherwise required. To date, the Company has not received any recommendations from 
stockholders requesting consideration of a candidate for inclusion among the committee’s slate of nominees in the 
Company’s proxy statement. 

Pursuant to the Company’s Amended and Restated Bylaws, for a director nomination or other business to be 
considered for the next annual meeting of stockholders, notice must be provided in writing and delivered to the 
Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal executive office on or before December 31, 2016. Such 
proposals must also comply with the requirements as to form and substance established by the SEC if such proposals 
are to be included in the proxy statement and form of proxy. Any such proposal should be mailed to: Triton Pacific 
Investment Corporation, Inc., 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90045, Attention: Corporate 
Secretary.  The timely submission of a proposal does not guarantee its inclusion.  

OTHER MATTERS TO COME BEFORE THE MEETING 

The Board is not aware of any matters that will be presented for action at the Annual Meeting other than the 
matters set forth herein. Should any other matters requiring a vote of stockholders arise, it is intended that the 
proxies that do not contain specific instructions to the contrary will be voted in accordance with the judgment of the 
persons named in the enclosed form of proxy. 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION 

We are required to file with or submit to the SEC annual, quarterly and current periodic reports, proxy 
statements and other information meeting the informational requirements of the Exchange Act. You may inspect and 
copy these reports, proxy statements and other information at the Public Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, 
NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by 
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information 
statements and other information filed electronically by us with the SEC which are available on the SEC’s website at 
http://www.sec.gov. Copies of these reports, proxy and information statements and other information may be 
obtained, after paying a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following e-mail address: publicinfo@sec.gov, 
or by writing to the SEC’s Public Reference Room. This information will also be available free of charge by 
contacting us at Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90045 or 
by telephone at (310) 943-4990.  
 
Householding of Proxy Materials 

 
In a further effort to reduce printing costs, postage fees and the impact on the environment, we have adopted a 

practice approved by the SEC called “householding.” Under this practice, stockholders who have the same address 
and last name will receive only one copy of our proxy materials, unless any of these stockholders notifies us that he 
or she wishes to continue receiving individual copies. Stockholders who participate in householding will continue to 
receive separate proxy cards. 

 
If you share an address with another stockholder and received only one set of proxy materials, but would like 

to request a separate copy of these materials, please contact the Company by calling (310) 943-4990 or by writing to 
the Company, Attn: Secretary, 6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90045.  Similarly, you may also 
contact the Company if you received multiple copies of the proxy materials and would prefer to receive a single 
copy in the future. 

 
  



INVESTMENT ADVISER AND ADMINISTRATOR, INVESTMENT SUB-ADVISER, DEALER 
MANAGER AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR 

Set forth below are the names and addresses of the Company’s investment adviser and administrator, 
investment sub-adviser, dealer manager and sub-administrator: 
  

INVESTMENT 
ADVISER 

INVESTMENT 
SUB-ADVISER ADMINISTRATOR DEALER MANAGER

SUB-
ADMINISTRATOR

 
Triton Pacific 
Adviser, LLC 

6701 Center Drive, 
14th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 
90045 

 
ZAIS Group, 

LLC 
Two Bridge 

Avenue, Suite 
322, Red Bank, 

New Jersey 
07701 

 
TFA 

Associates, LLC 
10800 Midlothian 

Turnpike 
Suite 128 

Richmond, VA 
23235 

 

 
Triton Pacific 

Securities, LLC 
6701 Center Drive, 

14th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 

90045 

 
The Bank of New 
York Mellon Trust 

Company, NA 
525 William Penn 
Place, 8th Floor 
Pittsburgh, PA 

15259 

PLEASE VOTE PROMPTLY BY SIGNING AND DATING THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND 
RETURNING IT IN THE ACCOMPANYING POSTAGE PAID RETURN ENVELOPE. 

  



TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION 
6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90045 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
To Be Held On May 27, 2016 

The undersigned hereby appoints Craig J. Faggen and Michael L. Carroll, and each of them, as proxies of the 
undersigned with full power of substitution in each of them, to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of 
Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), to be held at 10:00 a.m., 
Pacific Time, on Friday, May 27, 2016, at the offices of the Company located at                                                                                       
, Los Angeles, California 90045, and any adjournments or postponements thereof (the “Annual Meeting”), and vote 
as designated on the reverse side of this proxy card all of the shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of 
the Company (“Shares”) held of record by the undersigned. The proxy statement and the accompanying materials 
are first being mailed to stockholders of record described below on or about April 20, 2016.  All properly executed 
proxies representing Shares received prior to the Annual Meeting will be voted in accordance with the instructions 
marked thereon. 

If no specification is made, the Shares will be voted FOR the proposal to elect each of the director nominees, 
and FOR the proposal to ratify the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the Company’s independent registered 
public accounting firm. If any other business is presented at the Annual Meeting, this proxy will be voted by the 
proxies in their best judgment, including a motion to adjourn or postpone the Annual Meeting to another time and/or 
place for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies. At the present time, the board of directors of the Company 
knows of no other business to be presented at the Annual Meeting. Any stockholder who has given a proxy has 
the right to revoke it at any time prior to its exercise. Stockholders who execute proxies may revoke them with 
respect to a proposal by attending the Annual Meeting and voting his or her Shares in person or by submitting a 
letter of revocation or a later-dated proxy to the Company at the above address prior to the date of the Annual 
Meeting. 
  
       
    

  

Note: Please sign exactly as your name appears on 
this Proxy. When signing in a fiduciary capacity, 
such as executor, administrator, trustee, attorney, 
guardian, etc., please so indicate. Corporate or 
partnership proxies should be signed by an 
authorized person indicating the person’s title.  

 

 Signature 
    
         Signature 
     
             Date 
 
  



 
    

     
        

  
Please refer to the Proxy Statement for a discussion of each matter. 
IF THE PROXY IS SIGNED, SUBMITTED AND NO SPECIFICATION IS MADE, THE PROXY SHALL 
BE VOTED FOR EACH OF THE PROPOSALS. 
As to any other matter, said proxies shall vote in accordance with their best judgment. 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE FOLLOWING: 
  
           
  Please mark box as shown in this example.    � 
     

1.      To elect the nominees specified below as Directors 
    

FOR 
ALL

�   

WITHHOLD 
ALL 

�   

FOR ALL 
EXCEPT*

�   

 

   
(01) Craig J. Faggen 
  
(02) Ivan Faggen 
  
(03) Ronald W. Ruther 
  
(04) Marshall Goldberg 
  
(05) William Pruitt 

 

 

  

*       To withhold authority to vote for any 
individual nominee(s) write the 
name(s) of the nominee(s) in the box 
below. 

  

     
 
 

     

 

2.      To ratify the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the Company’s 
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2016. 

  

 

  

FOR 
� 
 
 
    

  

AGAINST 
� 
 

 

  

ABSTAIN
� 
 
 
 
   

PLEASE SIGN ON THE REVERSE SIDE 
  



Appendix A 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 
 
This Audit Committee Charter was adopted by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Triton Pacific 
Investment Corporation, Inc. (the “Company”), a corporation established under the laws of the State of Maryland, 
on the 29th day of April, 2015. 

 
Purpose 
The purpose of the audit committee shall be to (1) assure that the Board fulfills its responsibilities for the Company’s 
internal and external audit process, the financial reporting process and the system of risk assessment and internal 
controls over financial reporting; and (2) provide an avenue of communication between management, the 
independent auditors, the internal auditors, and the board of directors. 

 
Powers of the Audit Committee 
It shall be the responsibility of the audit committee to: 

 
•  Appoint, compensate, and oversee the work of any public accounting firm employed by the Company. 
•  Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of responsibility. 
•  Seek any information it requires from Company employees, all of whom should be directed by the board to 

cooperate with committee requests. 
•  Meet with Company staff, independent auditors or outside counsel, as necessary. 
•  Retain, at the Company’s expense, such outside counsel, experts and other advisors as the audit committee 

may deem appropriate. 
 
The Board will ensure that the audit committee has sufficient resources to carry out its duties. 

 
Composition of Committee and Selection of Members 
The audit committee shall consist of at least three members of the board of directors, all of which shall be independent 
of Company operations.  The Board will appoint the audit committee members and the audit committee chair. 

 
The committee shall include at least one member who is able to read and understand fundamental financial statements 
or will be able to do so within a reasonable period of time after his or her appointment to the Audit Committee, and 
at least one member who has had past employment experience in finance or accounting or other comparable 
experience or background which results in a reasonable degree of financial sophistication, and the committee shall 
further include members or shall take any other form as may be necessary to satisfy any applicable requirements of 
the Commission or any other necessary body. 

 
Meetings 
the Audit Committee shall (i) annually review the terms of engagement, independence and performance of the 
Corporation's independent auditors and recommend to the entire Board of Directors whether the engagement of the 
then current auditors should be renewed, (ii) review with such auditors the scope of their audit and non-audit 
assignments, their fees, the accounting principles to be used in the Corporation's financial statements, the adequacy 
of the Corporation's internal accounting procedures, the adequacy of its internal control procedures and any other 
matters required to be discussed with such auditors in order to comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations or 
accounting or auditing standards, (iii) review with management the Corporation's audited financial statements, (iv) 
review quarterly the valuation of the assets of the Corporation and take such actions as are necessary to affirm the 
net asset value of the Corporation; and review, and make such recommendations to the entire Board of Directors as 
it deems appropriate with respect to, the Corporation's compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
accounting standards.  
 
Meeting agendas will be prepared for every meeting and provided to the audit committee members along with 
briefing materials 5 business days before the scheduled audit committee meeting. The audit committee will act only 



on the affirmative vote of a majority of the members at a meeting or by unanimous consent. Minutes of these 
meetings will be recorded. 

 
Responsibilities 

The audit committee shall have responsibilities related to: (a) the independent auditor and annual financial 
statements; (b) oversight of management's internal controls, compliance and risk assessment practices; (c) special 
investigations and whistleblower policies; and (d) miscellaneous issues related to the financial practices of the 
Company. 

 
A. Independent Auditors and Financial Statements 

 
The audit committee shall: 

 
•  Appoint, compensate and oversee independent auditors retained by the Company and pre-approve all audit 

services provided by the independent auditor. 
 

•  Establish procedures for the engagement of the independent auditor to provide permitted audit services. The 
Company’s independent auditor shall be prohibited from providing non-audit services unless having received 
previous written approval from the audit committee.  Non-audit services include tasks that directly support the 
Company’s operations, such as bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial 
statements of the Company, financial information systems design and implementation, appraisal or valuation 
services, actuarial services, investment banking services, and other tasks that may involve performing 
management functions or making management decisions. 

 
•  Review and approve the Company’s audited financial statements, associated management letter, report on 

internal controls and all other auditor communications. 
 

•  Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual transactions and management 
decisions, and recent professional and regulatory pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial 
statements. 

 
•  Meet with the independent audit firm on a regular basis to discuss any significant issues that may have surfaced 

during the course of the audit. 
 

•  Review and discuss any significant risks reported in the independent audit findings and recommendations and 
assess the responsiveness and timeliness of management’s follow-up activities pertaining to the same. 

 
B. Internal Controls, Compliance and Risk Assessment 

 
The audit committee shall: 

 
•  Review management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls and review the report 

on internal controls by the independent auditor as a part of the financial audit engagement. 
 
C. Special Investigations 

 
The audit committee shall: 

 
•  Ensure that the Company has an appropriate confidential mechanism for individuals to report suspected 

fraudulent activities, allegations of corruption, fraud, criminal activity, conflicts of interest or abuse by the 
directors, officers, or employees of the Company or any persons having business dealings with the Company or 
breaches of internal control. 

 



•  Develop procedures for the receipt, retention, investigation and/or referral of complaints concerning accounting, 
internal controls and auditing to the appropriate body. 

 
•  Request and oversee special investigations as needed and/or refer specific issues to the appropriate body for 

further investigation (for example, issues may be referred to the State Inspector General or, other investigatory 
organization.) 

 
•  Review all reports delivered to it by the Inspector General and serve as a point of contact with the Inspector 

General. 
 
D. Other Responsibilities of the Audit Committee 

 

The audit committee shall: 
 
•  Present annually to the Company’s board a written report of how it has discharged its duties and met its 

responsibilities as outlined in the charter. 
 
•  Obtain any information and training needed to enhance the committee members’ understanding of the role of 

internal audits and the independent auditor, the risk management process, internal controls and a certain level of 
familiarity in financial reporting standards and processes. 

 
•  Review the committee’s charter annually, reassess its adequacy, and recommend any proposed changes to the 

board of the Company. The audit committee charter will be updated as applicable laws, regulations, accounting 
and auditing standards change. 

 
•  Conduct an annual self-evaluation of its performance, including its effectiveness and compliance with the charter 

and request the board approval for proposed changes. 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2015 

Triton Pacific Investment Corporation 

Detach and Return Proxy Ballot 



TRITON PACIFIC INVESTMENT CORPORATION 
6701 Center Drive, 14th Floor 
Los Angeles, California 90045 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 
To Be Held On May 27, 2016 

The undersigned hereby appoints Craig J. Faggen and Michael L. Carroll, and each of them, as proxies of the 
undersigned with full power of substitution in each of them, to attend the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of 
Triton Pacific Investment Corporation, Inc., a Maryland corporation (the “Company”), to be held at 10:00 a.m., 
Pacific Time, on Friday, May 27, 2016, at the offices of the Company located at                                                                                       
, Los Angeles, California 90045, and any adjournments or postponements thereof (the “Annual Meeting”), and vote 
as designated on the reverse side of this proxy card all of the shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of 
the Company (“Shares”) held of record by the undersigned. The proxy statement and the accompanying materials 
are first being mailed to stockholders of record described below on or about April 20, 2016.  All properly executed 
proxies representing Shares received prior to the Annual Meeting will be voted in accordance with the instructions 
marked thereon. 

If no specification is made, the Shares will be voted FOR the proposal to elect each of the director nominees, 
and FOR the proposal to ratify the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the Company’s independent registered 
public accounting firm. If any other business is presented at the Annual Meeting, this proxy will be voted by the 
proxies in their best judgment, including a motion to adjourn or postpone the Annual Meeting to another time and/or 
place for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies. At the present time, the board of directors of the Company 
knows of no other business to be presented at the Annual Meeting. Any stockholder who has given a proxy has 
the right to revoke it at any time prior to its exercise. Stockholders who execute proxies may revoke them with 
respect to a proposal by attending the Annual Meeting and voting his or her Shares in person or by submitting a 
letter of revocation or a later-dated proxy to the Company at the above address prior to the date of the Annual 
Meeting. 
  
       
    

  

Note: Please sign exactly as your name appears on 
this Proxy. When signing in a fiduciary capacity, 
such as executor, administrator, trustee, attorney, 
guardian, etc., please so indicate. Corporate or 
partnership proxies should be signed by an 
authorized person indicating the person’s title.  

 

 Signature 
    
         Signature 
     
             Date 
 
  



 
    

     
        

  
Please refer to the Proxy Statement for a discussion of each matter. 
IF THE PROXY IS SIGNED, SUBMITTED AND NO SPECIFICATION IS MADE, THE PROXY SHALL 
BE VOTED FOR EACH OF THE PROPOSALS. 
As to any other matter, said proxies shall vote in accordance with their best judgment. 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE FOLLOWING: 
  
           
  Please mark box as shown in this example.    � 
     

1.      To elect the nominees specified below as Directors 
    

FOR 
ALL

�   

WITHHOLD 
ALL 

�   

FOR ALL 
EXCEPT*

�   

 

   
(01) Craig J. Faggen 
  
(02) Ivan Faggen 
  
(03) Ronald W. Ruther 
  
(04) Marshall Goldberg 
  
(05) William Pruitt 

 

 

  

*       To withhold authority to vote for any 
individual nominee(s) write the 
name(s) of the nominee(s) in the box 
below. 

  

     
 
 

     

 

2.      To ratify the appointment of FGMK, LLC as the Company’s 
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2016. 

  

 

  

FOR 
� 
 
 
    

  

AGAINST 
� 
 

 

  

ABSTAIN
� 
 
 
 
   

PLEASE SIGN ON THE REVERSE SIDE 
  




